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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-5034 1-800-^52-3345 Ext. 5034

Fax: 603-271-5166 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.dhhs.nh.gov

April 1,2026

Her Excellency. Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to amend an existing contract with Amoskeag Health (VC #157274), Manchester,
NH, to continue providing a Comprehensive Nutrition, Feeding and Swallowing Network for
Children with Special Health Care Needs, by exercising a contract renewal option, by increasing
the price limitation by $1.100.000 from $2,140,000 to $3.240,000 and by extending the completion
date from June 30, 2025 to June 30, 2027, effective July 1, 2025, upon Governor and Council
approval. 16% Federal Funds. 84% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 30,2021 item #32
and amended on June 28, 2023, item #55.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027 upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-93-930010-5191 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT, HHS, DLTSS-DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, DIVOF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, SPECIAL
MEDICAL SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 074-500589

Grants for

Pub Asst

and Relief

93001000 $535,000 $0 $535,000

2023 074-500589

Grants for

Pub Asst

and Relief

93001000 $535,000 $0 $535,000

Subtotal $1,070,000 $0 $1,070,000
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05-95-93-930510-3676 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUM/VN SVCS
DEPT, HHS, DLTSS-DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, BUR-FAMILY CENTERED SERVICES
SPECIAL MEDICAL SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account

Class

Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

^2024
074-

500589

Grants for

Pub Asst

and Relief.

)

93051000 $535,000 $0- $535,000

2025
074- ^

500589

Grants for

Pub Asst

and Relief

93051000 $535,000 $0 $535,000

2026
074-

500589

Grants for

Pub Asst

and Relief

93051000 $0 $86,461 $86,461

2026
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program

Svs

93051001 $0 $463,539 $463,539

2027
074-

500589

Grants for

Pub Asst

and Relief

93051000 $0 $84,976 $84,976

2027
102-

500731

Contracts

for

Program
Svs

93051001 $0 $465,024 $465,024

Subtotal $1,070,000 $1,100,000 $2,170,000

Total $2,140,000 $1,100,000 $3,240,000

EXPLANATION )

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue to provide comprehensive
community-based nutrition, feeding and swallowing consultation network services to children with
special health care needs (CSHCN). Services include staff Identification, staff oversight, training,
and assessing CSHCN regarding their needs for community-based nutrition, feeding and
swallowing consultation services and include the planning for and development of safe feeding
plans, management of feeding tubes, aspiration management, and consultation.

The Contractor provides services to children and youth from birth to 21 years of age with
special health care needs for whom nutrition concerns have been identified. Nutritional
consultation helps to ensure optimal nutrition, growth, and development. In addition, families and
caregivers of children and youth with special health care needs receive swallowing evaluation
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reports, consultation, and follow up visits that assist with effectively managing their children's
feeding and swallowing issues.

Approximately 1500 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027.
The Contractor's nutrition, feeding and swallowing program delivers family centered

coordinated care with highly competent nutrition providers and feeding and swallowing specialists'
Home-based service delivery allows for observations in the child's natural environment providino
a more complete picture of the child and family, and their nutrition, feeding and swallowino
concerns. Additionally, the nutrition, feeding and swallowing program provides family centered
seivices to children at locations such as child care programs, schools, physician's offices and
outpatien therapy programs. This allows for collaboration between the family, nutrition feeding
and swallowing providers and other providers as well as opportunity to address the child's
nutrition, feeding and swallowing concerns in other relevant locations.

The Department will continue to monitor services by reviewing case records to ensure all
requirernents are met. and eighty-five percent (85%) of children with special health care needs

^-i y guardian, responding to a Department-approved survey, indicate satisfactionwith the services provided.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend
the for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services
available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council approval. The Department
IS exercising its option to renew services for the remaining two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, nearly 850 children with
special health care needs who need nutritional consultation may not be able to continue with the
services or have a reduction in services to help with optimal nutrition, growth and development.
In addition, families and caregivers of up to 650 children and youth with special health care needs
mayl no receive swallowing evaluations, consultations and follow up visits that assist them to
effectively manage their children's feeding and swallowing issues.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 93.994. FAIN B0440148
•  In the event that-the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds

will not be requested to support this program.

dUUttllUWU,\

Lori A. Weaverr \
Commissioner I \

The Depariment of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communitieB and families
tn providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
, Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Comprehensive Nutrition, Feeding and Swallowing Network for Children with
Special Health Care Needs contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health
and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Amoskeag Health ("the Contractor").

VVHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 30, 2021 (Item #32), as amended on June 28, 2023 (Item #55), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified: and

^ WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7., Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2027

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8,, Price Limitation, to read:

$3,240,000

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1., to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 22% Federaf Funds from the Title V Maternal Child Health Block Grant, as awarded on
October 26, 2020, by the Health Resources and Services Administration, ALN #93.944,
FAIN #B09SM010035; and as awarded on October 10. 2023, FAIN #B0440148.

,  1.2. 78% General Funds.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 3., to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and .shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as

'Specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-6, Amendment #2, Budget.

5. Modify Exhibits, Payment Terms, by adding Section4.1.,.toread:

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure invoices are net any other revenue received towards the
services billed in fulfillment of this Agreement.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 8., to read:

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

7. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 9., to read:

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in
part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit B, Amendment
#1, Scope of Services.

8. Add Exhibit C-5, Amendment #2, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9. Add Exhibit C-6, Amendment #2, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein. ^—ds

Amoskeag Health A-S-1.3 Contractor lnitials_

RFP-2022-DLTSS-04-COMPR-01-A02 Page 1 of 3 Date 3/9/2025
v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2025, upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below, . .

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

3/10/2025

OoeoSlgned by;

• lazaAj-scMOOFass..

Date Name^ Menssa Hardy

Director, dltss

Amoskeag Health

OocuSlaned by:

3/9/2025
C52AFe39C85F454..

Date Name; Kris Mccracken

-Title. President/CEO

Amoskeag Health A-S-1.3

RFP-2022-DLTSS-04-COMPR-01-A02 Page 2 of 3
V, 7.12.23
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

I

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

3/10/2025

^DocuSigned by:

.JAUTXAHiAOiiAM

Date Name: Robyn Cuarino

Title" '
Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved'by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

'  Title:

Amoskeag Health A-S-1.3

RFP-2022-DLTSS-04-COMPR-01-A02 Page 3 of 3
V. 7.12,23
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Exhibit C-5, Amendment #2, Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
1

Contractor Name: Amoskeag Health ;' ■

Budget Request for:
CornjDrehensive Nutrition, Feeding and Swallowing Network
for Children.with Special.Health Care Needs .

Budget Period SFY 2026 (July 1,.2025- June 30, 2026)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable);i5;ao%

Lineltemv
PrograrriXost - i'

:: Funded by DHHS
Program Cost - Contractor Share/

Match

1. Salary & Wages ■  ' ; $374,179 ■  , i ■ $33,345
2. Fringe Benefits I . . $90,776 ■ $8i089'

3. Consultants I;,- ■■ ,C ■ . $0.,' \$0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. " $0'

'  I

,  V , $D'
5.{a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0

5.{b) Supplies - Lab ;  : $0^ $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy '  $0 ;  $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical . .. „ . -$0

5.(e) Supplies Office ! ■ ■ $1,500 i  : ,$0

6. Travel r  , : $8,135, $0

7. Software ■  $1,434 .  $100

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications!  : : $0 $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training i  ' :$287 $2,713

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) t  ' $0' $0

Telephone $600 $0

Postage ::$350 ■  $0

Interpreter Services :  .*,$900' ■  s. $0'

Professional Licenses $100 .  - . $1,952

9. Subrecipient Contracts ,  $0 , $0.

Total Direct Costs , $478,261 ;  ; $46,199

Total Indirect Costs :  $71,739 ;  . $6,930

TOTAL $550,000 $53,129

Contractor Initials:

D$

RFP-2022-DLTSS-04-COMPR-01-A02 Date:
3/9/2025
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Exhibit C-6, Amendment #2, Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Amoskeag Health

Budget Request for:
Comprehensive Nutrition, Feeding and Swallowing Network
for Children with Special Health Care Needs

Budget Period SFY 2027 (July 1/2026 - June 30, 2027)
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 15.00%

V

Line Item
Program Cost -

Funded by DHHS

Program Cost - Contractor Share/

Match

1; Salary & Wages $375,140 $39,712
2. Fringe Benefits $91,009 $9,634
3. Consultants .$0 $0
4. Equipment.

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and

Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $o: $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0 $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $300 $0

6. Travel $8,287 ■  $100

7. Software $1,534 $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications '■ $0 $0
8. (b) Other - Education and Training i  $200 $2,800
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) .  $0 $0

Telephone $600 1  . $0
Postage $350 $0
Interpreter Services $741- $0
Professional Licenes $100 $1,952

9. Subre'cipient Contracts $0 $0
Total Direct Costs $478,261 $54,198

Total Indirect Costs $71,739 $8,130

TOTAL $550,000 $62,328

Contractor Initials:

RFP-2022-DLTSS-04-COMPR-01-A02 Date:
3/9/2025
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretarj' of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that AMOSKEAG HEALTH is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 07, 1992.1 further certify that all fees

and documents required by the Secretaiy of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this ofiice is

concerned.

Business ID: 175115

Certificate Number: 0006661501

tarn

O
fe)

0)

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOE,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 8th day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary' of Stale
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Obhed Girl

(Name of the'elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am aduly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officerof Amoskeag Health

hereby certify that •

(Corporation/LLC Name) : • . ' , . . .

2. The.follovying is a true copy of a vote; taken at a rheeting of the Botird of Dirdcior^sharehoiders, duly called and
heid oh : - March 4 . . 2025 at which a quorum ofihe Directors/shareholders were,present' and voting. •

- -.(Date):, ':

VOTED: That Kris McCracken

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory) . .
(may list more thanane. persoh).

is duly authorized on behalf of • • Amoskeag Health. to.enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC): ,

of New Hampshire and any :of its-agencies or ̂ departments and further is. authorized to execute, any and all
documents, agreements and;other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or .modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment t)e desirable or necessary to effect the purpose'of this vote. . '

3. I hereby certify that said;vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract .amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for.,
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)listed above currently.occupy the.
posltion(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there, are ahy
limits on the authority of any listed iridividual to birtd the corporation in contracts with th^tate Of New, Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly statedi herein. ' cl ' '

Dated:

cer.  ..Signature of BeiA

Name: Obhed Giri
Title.:. Board Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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I^ AMOSKHEA

ACORD. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/OD/YYYY)

3/06/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed,
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

USl Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

Nicole Rhuda

K)&"no. EX,): 855 874-0123

A^D^Ess: nicole.rhuda@usi.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICD

INSURER A; Selective Insurance Co of the Southeast 39926

INSURED

Amoskeag Health
145 Hcllis Street

Manchester, NH 03101

INSURER B : Granite State Healthcare & Human Svc WC NONAIC

INSURER c; ZNAT Insurance Company 30120

INSURER 0:

INSURER E :

INSURERF:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN' MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL
IMSR

SUBR
wvn POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/OD/YYYY)

POUCY EXP
(MM/OD/YYYY) LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL G£ NERAL LIABILITY

E 1 X| OCCUR
X X S2640265 06/04/2024 07/01/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC Mli?E?Kr?ence) $300,000

MED EXP (Any one person) $10,000

PERSONAL 4 ADV INJURY $1,000,000
GE TL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

1  1 PRO- 1 1
POLICY 1 1 JECT 1 1 LOC

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $3,000,000
s

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY X X S2640265 06/04/2024 07/01/2025
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
fEa accident) s1.000,000

ANY AUTO

HEDULEO
TOS
N-OWNED

TOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

sc
At

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $

X X
NC
At

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer accident) $

$

A X UMBRELLA LLAB

EXCESS LIAB

X CXDCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

X X S2640265 06/04/2024 07/01/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $4,000,000

AGGREGATE $4,000,000

DED RETENTIONS s

B

C

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABlLfTY y -
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE | 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
If yea. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

X

P02300HCHS2025

3A State; NH

Ml397401

3A: AR ME MA NC

01/01/2025

01/01/2025

01/01/2026

01/01/2026

V PER OTH-
A .qjATllTF ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarli* Schedule, may be attached 1, more apace la required)

This Evidence of Insurance is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the holder

and does not amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by policies designated on the Evidence.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

state of NH

Department of Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

'

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#S47761057/M47759679

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
,  PDNZP
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AMOSKEAG
HEALTH

MISSION STATEMENT

\  , ■

Mailing Address: 145 Hollis Street, Manchester, NH 03101

Office Locations:

145 Hollis Street, Manchester, NH

1245 Elm Street, Manchester, NH

184 Tarrytown Road, Manchester, NH

2 Wall Street, Manchester, NH

Telephone: 603-626-9500
Website: https://vvvvw.amoskeaghealth.ora/

MISSION

To improve the health and well-being of our patients and the communities we serve by providing exceptional

care and services that are accessible to all.

VISION

We envision a healthy and vibrant community with strong families and tight social fabric that ensures everyone

has the tools they need to thrive and succeed.

CORE VALUES

We believe in:

•  Promoting wellness and empowering patients through education

•  Fostering an environment of respect, integrity and caring where all people are treated equally with

dignity and courtesy

•  Providing exceptional, evidence-based and patient-centered care _ ^

•  Removing barriers so that our patients achieve and maintain their best possible health.

Where quality and compassion meet family and community
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BerryDunn

Z

AMOSKEAG
.HEALTH

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and

REPORTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS AND THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

June 30, 2024 and 2023

With Independent Auditor's Report
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l^BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Amoskeag Health

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Amoskeag Health (the Organization),
which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related statements of

^ operations and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2024 and 2023,; and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 11 to the financial staternents, the Organization has incurred a significant
operating loss during the year ended June 30, 2024 and has declining working capital and limited days
cash on hand. Management's evaluation of the events and conditions and management's plans to
mitigate these matters are also described in Note 11. Our opinion is not modified with respect to that
matter.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona ■ Puerto Rico

berrydunn.com
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Board of Directors

Amoskeag Health

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal, control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from, fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is
a substantial likelihood that, individually-or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify arid assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include exaimining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether; in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.
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Board of Directors

Amoskeag Health

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit', significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost'^Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of.management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial^statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December.
3, 2024 on our consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 3, 2024
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Balance Sheets

June 30, 2024 and 2023

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable

Grants and other receivables
Other current assets

Total current assets

Operating lease right-of-use assets
Property and equipment, net
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Line of credit

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Current portion of operating lease liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Operating lease liabilities, less current portion

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2024 2023

219,540 $ 1,291,683
1,175,811 1,857,818
930,506 1,120,900

2,425,384 4,416,135

1,243,798 1,454,454

3,413,462 3,597,132
106.676 103.941

i  7.189.318 $ 9.571.662

800,000 $
1,073,322 580,054
1,764,205 1,663,737
178,529 178,529

1.426.430 1.467.285

5,242,486 3,889,605

1.136.450 1.314.978

6.378.936 5.204.583

(107,025) 3,574,104
917.407 792.975

810.382 4.367.079

$  7.189.318 $ 9.571.662

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023

Operating revenue
Net patient service revenue
Grants, contracts and support
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restriction for operations

Total operating revenue'

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies and minor equipment 1
Contracted services •

Occupancy
Other

Depreciation and amortization
Interest

Total operating expenses

Deficiency of revenue over expenses

Grants received for capital acquisition and in service

Decrease in net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Net assets released from restriction for operations
\

Increase (decrease) In net assets with donor restrictions

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

$ 10,035,543 $ 11,137.761
9,556,723

89,275
444.973

11,892,431
71,330

1.048.634

20.126.514 24.150.156

14,177,028 15,520,631
3,588,222 3,777,334
673,775 1,251,911

3,466,299 3,759,308
1,085,498 1,250,813
505,555 522,917
428,873 457,433

50.584 48.724

23.975.834 26.589.071

(3,849,320) (2,438,915)

168.191 39.155

(3.681.1291 (2.399.7601

569,405 654,645
(444.9731 (1.048.6341

124.432 (393.9891

(3,556,697) (2,793,749)

4.367.079 7.160.828

810.382 S 4.367.079

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Statements of Functional Expenses

Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024

Healthcare Services

Administrative and Support

Special Total Marketing
Behavioral Medical Healthcare and

Medical Health Pharmacv Proa rams Services Administration Fundraisino Total

Salaries and wages $ 7,973,255 $  3,168,919 $  68,667 $  1,366,431 $ 12,577,272 $ 1,419.469 $  180,287 $ 14,177,028
Employee benefits 2,021,604 902,060 53,140 334,755 3,311,559 245,328 31,335 3,588,222
Supplies and minor equipment 415,689 47,619 171,852 16,238 651,398 22,170 207 673,775
Contracted services 1,145,537 711,577 336,781 145,106 2,339,001 1,104,155 23,143 3,466,299
Occupancy 650,477 290,521 34,974 106,783 1,082,755 2,743 . 1,085,498
Other 112,969 98,055 4,607 32,057 247,688 243,587 14,280 505,555
Depreciation and amortization 210,402 77,127 9,708 28,998 326,235 102,638 • 428,873
Interest 2.499 1.035 133 397 4.064 46.520 50.584

Total $ 12.532.432 $  5.296.913 $  679.862 $  2.030.765 $ 20.539.972 $ 3.186.610 S  249.252 $ 23.975.834

2023

Healthcare Services
Administrative and Support

Special Total Marketing
Behavioral Medical Healthcare and

Medical Health Pharmacv Proorams Services Administration Fundraisino Total

Salaries and wages !$  8,939,465 $  3,006,416 :$  52,985 $  1,573,145 $  13,572,011 $  1,710,956 $  237,664 $ 15,520,631
Employee benefits 1,892,344 885,604 13,259 332,514 3,123,721 594,854 58,759 3,777,334
Supplies and minor equipment • 657,097 148,089 97,574 75,261 978,021 250,493 23,397 1,251,911
Contracted services 1,468.341 855,698 _336,323 269,827 2,930,189 812,470 16,649 3,759,308
Occupancy 656,520 147,959 97,489 75,195 977,163 250,274 23,376 1,250,813
Other 274,017 58,473 43,760 30,474 406,724 106,445 9,748 522.917
Depreciation and amortization 178,648 47,234 6,284 18,651 250,817 202,918 3.698 457,433
Interest 16.084 5.060 749 2.222 24.115 24.174 435 48.724

Total '5  14.082.516 S  5.154.533 :£  648.423 $  2.377.289 $ 22.262.761 $  3.952.584 $  373.726 $ 26.589.071

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
used by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of operating lease right-of-use ass^
Grants received for capital acquisition
Contributions received for capital acquisition
(Increase) decrease in the following assets

Patient accounts receivable

Grants and other receivables

Other current assets

Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Operating lease liabilities

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments

Capital expenditures

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants received for capital acquisition
Contributions received for capital acquisition
Proceeds from line of credit

Payments on line of credit
Payments on long-term debt

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Cash paid for interest

$  (3,556,697) $ (2,793,749)

428,873
210,658

(168,191)'

682,007
190,394
46,207

493,268
100,468

(178.528)

(2,735)
(239.444)

(242.179)

168,191

1,050,000
(250,000)
(46.614)

921.577

(1,072,143)

1.291.683

457,433
210,821
(39,155)
'  (5,000)

(434,850)
735,167

8,408

51,485

311.391
(171.768)

(1.751.541) (1.669.817)

(47,653)
(185.529)

(233.182)

39,155
5,000

(48.430)

f4.275)

(1,907,274)

3.198.957

$  219.540 S 1.291.683

50.584 $ 48.724

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

Organization

Anioskeag Health (the Organization) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in Manchester New
Hampshire. The Organization is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) providing high-quality,
comprehensive, and family-oriented primary health care and support services, which meet the needs of
a diverse community, regardless of age, ethnicity or income.

1- Summary of Sianificant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP), which requires the Organization to report information
in the financial statements according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions; Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a
public charity, the Organization is exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned
in accordance with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded
that the Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the financial statements.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits, money market funds and petty cash.

The Organization maintains cash balances at several financial institutions. The balances at each
institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $25(3.000. At
various times throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances may exceed FDIC insurance.
The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and management believes it is
not exposed to any significant risk.

Revenue Recognition and Patient Accounts Receivable

Net patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Organization expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due
from patients and third-party payers (including commercial insurers and governmental programs).
Generally, the Organization bills the patients and third-party payers several days after the services
are performed. Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied.

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
Organization. The Organization measures the performance obligations for medical, behavioral
health, optometry, podiatry and ancillary services are measured from the commencement of an in-
person or virtual encounter with a patient to the completion of the encounter. Ancillary services
provided the same day are considered to be part of the performance obligation and are not
deemed to be separate performance obligations.

The majority of the Organization's performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time.

The Organization has determined that the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows are affected by the payer. In assessing collectability, the Organization has elected the
portfolio approach. The portfolio approach is being used as the Organization has a large volume of
similar contracts with similar classes of customers (patients). The Organization reasonably expects
that the effect of applying a portfolio approach to a group of contracts would not differ materially
from considering each contract separately. Management's judgment to group the contracts by
portfolio is based on the payment behavior expected in each portfolio category. As a result,
aggregating all the contracts (which are at the patient level) by the particular payer or group of
payers will result in the recognition of the same amount of revenue as applying the analysis at the
individual patient level. Significant payer concentrations are presented in Note 3.

A summary of payment arrangements follows:

Medicare

The Organization is primarily reimbursed for services provided to patients based on the lesser of
actual charges or prospectively set rates for all FQHC services provided to a Medicare beneficiary
on the same day. Certain other services provided to patients are reimbursed based on
predetermined payment rates for each Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) code, which may be
less than the Organization's public fee schedule.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

Medicaid

The Organization is primarily reimbursed for medical, behavioral health, certain dental and
ancillary services provided to patients based on prospectively set rates for all FQHC services
furnished to a Medicaid beneficiary on the same day. Certain other services provided to patients
are reimbursed based on predetermined payment rates for each OPT code, which may be less
than the Organization's public fee schedule.

Commercial Pavers

The Organization has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance
carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. Under these
arrangements, the Organization is reimbursed for services based on contractually obligated,
payment rates for each CPT code, which may be less than the Organization's public fee schedule.

Patients

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its sliding fee discount
program. The Organization estimates the costs associated with providing this care by calculating
the ratio of total cost to total charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the gross uncompensated
charges associated with pToviding care to patients eligible for the sliding fee discount program.
The estimated cost of providing services to patients under the Organization sliding Tee discount
policy amounted to $1,988,390 and $2,188,583 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively. The Organization is able to provide these services with a component of funds
received through federal grants.

For uninsured patients who do not qualify under the Organization's sliding fee discount program,
the Organization bills the patient based on the Organization's standard rates for services provided.
Patient balances are typically due within 30 days of billing; however, the Organization does, in
certain instances, enter into payment agreements with patients that allow payments in excess of
one year. For those cases, the financing component is not deerried to be significant to the
contract.

340B Contract Pharmacy Program Revenue

The Organization, as an FQHC, is eligible to participate in the 340B Drug Pricing Program. This
program requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other covered
entities at a reduced price. The Organization contracts with other local pharmacies under this
program. The contract pharmacies dispense drugs to eligible patients of the Organization and bill
commercial Insurances on behalf of the Organization. Reimbursement received by the contract
pharmacies is remitted to the Organization, less dispensing and administrative fees. The
dispensing and administrative fees are costs of the program and not deemed to be implicit price
concessions which would reduce the transaction price. The Organization recognizes revenue in
the amounts that reflect the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for the
prescription after the amount has been determined by the pharmacy benefits manager.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

Lawsvand regulations governing the Medicare. Medicaid and 340B programs are complex and
subject to Interpretation. Management believes that the Organization is in compliance with all laws
and regulations. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare, Medicaid and 340B programs. Differences between amounts
previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are
included in patient service revenue in the year that such amounts become known.

Patients Accounts Receivable

Effective July 1, 2023, the Organization adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326).\
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, as amended, which modifies the
measurement of expected claims and credit losses on certain financial instruments. Topic 326
requires measurement and recognition of expected versus incurred losses for financial assets
held. Financial assets held by the Organization that are subject to ASU 2016-13 include patient
accounts receivable. The adoption of this ASU did not have a material impact on the
Organization's financial statements.

Patient accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances and are reduced by explicit and implicit price concessions. Management
estimates implicit price concessions based on its historical collection experience with patients. No
additional valuation allowance is necessary for possible credit losses based on historical
experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts.

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants receivable are stated at the arnount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. All such amount are considered collectible.

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable grants, which are
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred
expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received prior to
incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as deferred revenue. The Organization has been
awarded cost reimbursable grants with project periods extending beyond June 30, 2024 In the
aggregate amount of $9,568,050' that have not been recognized at June 30, 2024 because
qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred.

The Organization receives a significant amount of grants from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (HHS). As with all government funding, these grants are subject to reduction or
termination in future years. For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, grants from HHS
(including both direct awards and awards passed through other organizations) represented
approximately 64% and 61%, respectively, of grants, contracts and support revenue. .

J-
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

Riqht-of-Use Assets and Lease Liabilities

U.S. GAAP requires lessees to recognize a lease liability and a right-of-use asset for all leases
with terms greater than 12 months on its balance sheet. Whether an arrangement contains a lease
is evaluated at the inception of the arrangement. The Organization estimates its lease liability at
the present value of future rent payments required under a lease using the Imputed rate when
identifiable or a risk-free rate for a term approximating the lease term, including options to extend
or terminate the lease that the Organization is reasonably certain to exercise. As the leases do not
provide an implicit rate, the Organization elected the practical expedient to use the risk-free rate.

The Organization's right-of-use asset initially is equal to its lease liability, adjusted for any lease
incentives received or lease payments made. Lease expense is recorded on a straight-line basis
over the term of a lease. Leases of 12 months or less at inception are not included in the
Organization's right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are
expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized. Provision for depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the related assets. The
Organization's capitalization policy is applicable for acquisitions greater than $5,000.

Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit use of the donated assets. When a
donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the statements of operations and changes in net assets as net assets
released from restriction.

The Organization reports gifts of property and equipment as support without donor restrictions
unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived
assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as support with donor
restrictions. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be
maintained, the Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or
acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

Functional Expenses '
/

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than
one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a reasonable
basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include depreciation, interest,
and office and occupancy costs, which are allocated on a square-footage basis, as well as the
shared systems technology fees for the Organization's medical records and billing system, which
are allocated based on the percentage of patients served by each function.

Deficiency of Revenue Over Expenses

The statements of operations reflect the deficiency of revenue over expenses. Changes^in net
' assets without donor restrictions which are excluded from the deficiency of revenue over expenses
include contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using grants and contributions
which, by donor restriction, were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets).

Subsequent Events '■

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through December 3, 2024, the date that the financial statements
were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for
inclusion in the financial statements.

2. Avallabllitv and Llauidltv of Financial Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year were
as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable
Grants and other receivables

Financial assets available
Less net assets with donor restrictions

Financial assets available

$

2024

219.540
1,175,811

930.506

2,325,857
917.407

$

2023

1,291,683
1.857,818
1.120.900

4,270,401
792.975

$  1.408.450 $ 3.477.426

The Organization had average days (based on normal expenditures) cash and cash equivalents
on hand of 3 and 18 at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

3. Patient Accounts Receivable and Net Patient Service Revenue

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable and due from third-party payers are stated at the amount
management expects to collect from outstanding balances and consisted of the following at June
30:

2024 2023 2022

Direct patient services $ 1,137,265 $ 1.795,769\ $ 1,302,100
Contract 340B pharmacy program 38.546 62.049 120.868

Total patient accounts receivable $ 1.175.811 $ 1.857.818 $ 1.422.968

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. Medicaid accounted for approximately 59%
and • 54% of the Organization's patient accounts receivable at June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively. No other individual payer represented more than 10% of the Organization's net
patient accounts receivable.

Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue is as follows for the years ended June 30:

2024 2023

Gross Charges. $ 13,687,925 $ 18,699,505
Less: Contractual adjustments and Implicit price concessions (3,414,011) (7,066,363)

Sliding fee discount policy adjustments M.180.7061 (1.687.369)

Total net direct patient service revenue 9,093,208 9,945,773
. Other patient revenue 163,008 113,460
Contract 340B program revenue 779.327 1.078.528

Total net patient service revenue $ 10.035.543 $ 11.137.761

Revenue from Medicaid accounted for approximately 58% and 59% of the Organization's net
patient service revenue for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. No other
individual payer represented more than 10% of the Organization's net patient service revenue.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of June 30:

2024 2023

Land $ 81,000 $ 81,000
Building and leasehold improvements 5,428,684 5,428,684
Furniture and equipment 3.048.558 2.831,166

Total cost 8,558,242 8,340,850
Less accumulated depreciation 5.194.939 4.779.625

3,363,303 3,561,225
Projects in process . 50.159 35.907

Property and equipment, net $ 3,413,462 $ 3.597.132
\

Property and equipment acquired with Federal grant funds are subject to specific federal
standards ,for sales and other dispositions.' In many cases, the F^ederal government retains a
residual ownership interest in the assets, requiring prior approval and restrictions on disposition.

5. Line of Credit

The Organization has a $1,000,000 line of credit demand note with a local banking institution with
interest at the Bloomberg Short-Term Bank Yield Index rate plus 2.75% (8.14% at June 30, 2024).
The line of credit is collateralized by all assets. Tt^ere was $800,000 outstanding at June 30, 2024.
There was no outstanding balance at June 30. 2023.

The Organization has a 30-day paydown requirement on the line of credit, which was met for the
year ended June 30, 2024.

6. Leases

The Organization has entered into the following lease arrangements:

Operating Leases

The Organization has operating leases for clinic facilities with maturities ranging from May 2025
through March 2034. Certain leases contain renewal options and escalation clauses which range
from 2% to 6.73%. Termination of the leases are generally prohibited unless there is a violation
under the lease agreement. The'weighted-average discount rate and weighted-average remaining
lease term in years for operating leases as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, were 2.88% and 8.35
years and 2.88% and 9.00 years, respectively.

-15-



Docusign Envelope ID: EDEB80F3-A517-4FE5-800F-39CD7EA6C800

AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

Short-Term Leases

The Organization has certain leases that are for a period of 12 months of less or contain renewals
for periods of 12 months or less.

Lease Cost

Lease cost, which approximates lease payments, for the year ended June 30, 2024 was as
follows;

2024 2023

Operating leases $ 250,903 $ 255,964
Short-term leases 223.064 278.944

Total $ 473.967 $ 534.908

Future Minimum Lease Payments and Reconciliation to the Balance Sheet

Future minimum payments due under the facility lease agreements for the years ending June 30,
are as follows:

2025 $ 216,166
2026 _ 160,335
2027 ^ 166,940
2028 148.062
2029 119,288
Thereafter 684.909

Total future undiscounted lease payments 1,495,700
Less present value discount 180.721

Total operating lease liabilities 1,314,979
Current portion of operating lease liabilities 178.529

Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion $ 1.136.450

7. Lonq-Term Debt

The Organization has a promissory note with Citizens Bank, N. A. (Citizens), collateralized by real
estate, for $1,670,000 with New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority participating
in the lending for $450,000 of the note payable. Monthly payments of $8,011, including interest
fixed at 3.05%, are based on a 25-year amortization schedule and are to be paid through April
2026, at which time a balloon payment will be due for the remaining balance.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

The Organization is required to meet an annual minimum working capital and debt service
coverage debt covenants as defined in the loan agreement with Citizens. In the event of default,
Citizens has the option to terminate the agreement and immediately request payment of the
outstanding debt without notice of any kind to the Organization. The Organization was not in
compliance with the debt service coverage -ratio at June 30, 2024, accordingly the full amount of
the note is reported as a currently liability in the accompanying balance sheet as of June 30, 2024.

8. Net Assets ^

Net assets were as follows as of June 30;

^  , Net assets without donor restrictions
Undesignated ^ $ (107,025) $ 3,068,175
Designated for working capital - 505.929

Total $ f107.025) $ 3.574.104

Net assets with donor restrictions for specific purpose
Temporary in nature

Healthcare and related program services $ 305,376 $ 259,485-
Building improvements 320,000 310,000
Child health services 190.673 122.132

816,049 691,617

Permanent in nature %

Available to borrow for working capital as needed 101.358 101.358

Total ^ $ 917.407 $ 792.975

9. Benefit Plans

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) that
covers substantially all employees. The Organization contributed $304,037 and $305,200 during
the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The Organization provides health insurance to Its employees through a captive self-insurance
plan. The Organization estimates and records a liability for claims incurred but not reported for
employee health provided through the captive self7insured plan. The liability is estimated based on
prior claims experience and the expected time period from the date such claims are incurred to the
date the related claims are submitted and paid. Expenses related to the plan amounted to
$1,950,890 and $2,113,735 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

10. Medical IVIalpractice Insurance

1

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FOHC under the Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of June 30, 2024,
there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of management, will be
settled for amounts in excess of both FTCA and additional medical malpractice insurance
coverage, nor are there any unassorted claims or incidents which require loss accrual. The

. Organization intends to renew the additional medical malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-
made basis and anticipates that such coverage will be available.

11. Financial Improvement Plan

The Organization incurred a defieciency of revenue over expenses of $(3,849,320) and
$(2,438,915) for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and has negative working
capital and limited days of cash and cash equivalents on hand at June 30, 2024. These factors
raise substantial doubt regarding the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern through
one year from December 3, 2024, which is the financial statements were available to be issued.

The Organization incurred a deficiency of revenue over expenses of $(3,849,320) and
$(2,438,915) for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and has decreasing
liquidity, resulting in draws on lines of credit, advances from vendors, negative working capital and

'  failure to meet its debt covenants.

In the last quarter of fiscal year 2023 and throughout fiscal year 2024, the Organization underwent
a conversion of it's electronic health record. During the transition, provider productivity was
reduced, and the revenue cycle team had limited resources to implement the new system as well
as keep existing collection efforts current. The Organization also suffered staffing vacancies and
increased revenues anticipated from an increase in reimbursement rates effective October 1, 2024
were not realized due to approximately 1,000 Medicaid patients being disenrolled from the
program due to the end of Public Health Emergency.

These factors have raised concerns about the Organization's ability to meet its financial
obligations due within one year after the issuance of these financial statements.

Plans to Alleviate Substantial Doubt

To address these challenges, management has initiated several strategic projects:

Revenue Enhancement Strategies: Increased provider staffing, improvements provider
productivity and increased visit volumes resulting In a projected 9% increase in medical visits
and 61% increase in in behavioral health visits. Management has also implemented a strategy
to minimize missed appointments. These initiatives combined with a full year of the higher
Medicaid reimbursement rate are projected to increase revenue (net of increased direct care
staffing costs) by approximately $2,500,000 in 2025. ,
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Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2024 and 2023

Cost Reduction Initiatives: Termination of certain occupancy and parking leases, outsource
IT, and strategic staffing reductions. These initiatives are estimated to reduce expenses by
approximately $495,000 annually. '

Medicaid Enrollment: Management is implementing a program to assist uninsured patients
with enrollment in Medicaid and marketplace health plans which is estimated to increase
revenue by approximately $250,000. A local hospital will be providing a contribution to the
Organization to support the salary of two positions dedicated to this project for six months.

Liquidity Management: Engaging in negotiations with new and existing financial institutions
for refinance of existing debt and line of credit. Management expects to reach favorable terms
to maintain liquidity and avoid near-term repayment obligations. Additionally, during 2023 the
Organization filed for tax credits under the Employee Retention Credit (ERG) program, which
is a refundable tax credit for business and tax-exempt organizations that had employees and
were affected during the COVID-19 pandemic. Eligibility for the ERG involves complex rules
about full or partial suspension of operations due to government orders. Actual payment from
the ERG and the timing of payment Is uncertain due_to increased scrutiny by the Internal
Revenue Service of ERG claims.

Status

In September 2024, the Organization was awarded a $1,952,458 grant from the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, to assist with stabilizing operating losses
experienced due to the Impacts of increased uncompensated care related to the end of continuous
Medicaid coverage under the Public Health Emergency to support access for those individuals who
require continuation of services. The Organization used a portion of these funds to fully repay the
line of credit and make payments to vendors.

As of the date of this report, all projects mentioned above have been initiated. The 2025 operating
budget is projecting a breakeven. Operating results for the four months ended October 31, 2024
also reflects a breakeven and visit volumes are tracking 2.5% higher than budgeted volumes.

Conclusion

Management believes these strategic initiatives will mitigate the conditions that raised substantial
doiibt. Based on forecasts and cash flow projections reflecting these plans, management has
concluded that substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern
has been alleviated for one year from December 3, 2024, the date the financial statements were
issued.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Prooram Title

U.S. Deoanment of Health and Human Services

Direct

Health Center Program Cluster
Community Health Centers

Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants for New and Expanded
Services Under the Health Center Program

COVlD-19 Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants for New
and Expanded Services Under the Health Center Program

Total AL 93.527

Total Health Center Program Cluster

Affordable Care Act (ACA) Personal Responsibility Education
Program

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Projects of
Regional and National Significance

FIP Verification

Passlhmuoh

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

YWCA New Hampshire

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Projects •
of Regional and National Significance

Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Projects
of Regional and National Significance

Total AL 93.243

Bi-State Primary Care Association. Inc.

CpVID-19 Immunization Cooperative Agreements

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Emergency Response: Cooperative
Agreement for Emergency Response: Public Health
Crisis Response

C0V1D-19 Activities to Support State. Tribal, Local and
Territorial (STLT) Health Department Response to
Public Health or Healthcare Crises

JSI Research and Trainino Institute. Inc.

Activities to Support State, Tribal, Local and Territorial (STLT)
Health Department Response to Public Health or
Healthcare Crises

Total AL 93.391 \
State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for State, Territorial
and Tribal Organizations

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

477 Cluster

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

Catholic Medical Center

Medicaid Cluster

Medical Assistance Program

Bi-State Primarv Care Association Inc.

Opioid STR

Opioid STR

Total AL 93.994

..Federal

Assistance

Listing

Number

93.224

93.527

93.527

93.092

93.243

93.526

93.217

93.243

93.243

93.266

93.354

93.391

93.391

93.898

93.558

93.778

93.788

93.788

Pass-Through

Contract

Number

Total

Federal

Expenditures

1069352

H79F6000828

n/a

rVa

NU90TP922144

NH750T000031/

N90CA1858

90577170

NU58DP006298

157274-B001/90080206

NH20164

n/a

rVa

2,262,617

28,241

2,290,858

3,757,498

59,042

76,409

168,191

77,425

113,202

21,067

134,269

127,758

530,048

150,938

5,000

155,938

68,600

26,172

974

60,045

145,367

Amount Passed

Through to
SubreclPlents

1,466,640 $

5.065

76,201

4,997

4,997

205,412

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Concluded)

Year Ended June 30, 2024

Federal Gr'antor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title

State of New Hampshtfe Deoartment of Health and Human Sefvices

Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the

Federal

Assistance

Listing

Number

Pass-Through

Contract

Number

Total

Federal

Exoendltures

Amount Passed

Through to

SubreclDlents

States

Maternal and Child Health Sen/Ices Block Grant to the

States

Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the

States

93.994

93.994

93.994

1062420

561-500911/93001000

562-500912/93001000

352,991

245,449

133,750

-

Total AL 93.994 732,190 .

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 6,119,926 66,263

U.S. Deoartment of Housinc and Urban Develooment

Passthrouoh

Citv of Manchester. New Hampshire

Lead Hazard Reduction Demonstration Grant Program 14.905 n/a 2,988

CDBG • Entitlement Grants Cluster

Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 210724C 47,000

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 49,988 .

U.S. Deoartment of Justice

-.Pfisslhrouah

State of New Hamoshire Deoartment of Justice

Comprehensive Opioid, Stimulant, and Other Sut^stances
Use Program 16.838 n/a - ^ 239,872 97,360

U.S. Deoartment of Treasurv

Pa.vtlhmiMh

Citv of Manchester. New Hamoshire

COVID-19 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal

Recovery Funds 21.027 #212422 ARPA" 162.934 29,246

Citv of Manchester. New Hamoshire Police Deoartment

COVID-19 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal

Recovery Funds 21.027 #410222 ARPA 379.006 191,486

Bi-Statfi Primarv Care Assodatinn Inn

COVID-19 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal

Recovery Funds 21.027 n/a 15,029

Total AL 21.027 556,969 220,732

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards. All Programs S 6,966,755 $ 404,355

r

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this schedule.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2024
,  r

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards {Schedule) are reported
on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance),
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

2. De Minimis Indirect Cost Rate

Amoskeag Health (the Organization) has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

3. Basis of Presentation

The Schedule includes the federal grant activity of the Organization. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Because
the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Organization, it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of
the Organization.
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1:^ BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

Amoskeag Health

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Amoskeag Health (the Organization), which
comprise the balance sheet as of June 30, 2024, and the related statements of operations and
changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 3, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial-statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Moine • New Hampshire • Massochusetts • Conrvecticut • West Virginia • Arizono • Puerto Rico

berrydunn.com
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B.oard of Directors

Amoskeag Health

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's Internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

L^£—C-^

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 3, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR THE MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

Amoskeag Health

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We have audited Amoskeag Health's (the Organization) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the Office of Management and ̂ Budget Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year
ended June 30, 2024. The Organization's major federal program is identified in the summary of
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year
ended June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of
our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance \A/ith relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for the
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Organization's federal programs.

Moine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizorva • Puerto Rico

berrydunn.com



Docusign Envelope ID; EDEB80F3.A517-4FE5-800F-39CD7EA6C800

Board of Directors

Amoskeag Health

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Organization's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards and the
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery. Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would Influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Organization's compliance with the
requirements of the major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncoryipliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Organization's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of the Organization's internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
Internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A^deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in intemal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies. In internal control over compliance, such
that there Is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal-control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Board of Directors

Amoskeag Health

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.'

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester; New Hampshire
December 3, 2024
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2024

1. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

. Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness{es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not

considered to be material weakness{es)?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
\

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not

considered to be material weakness(es)?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

□

□

□

Unmodified

□ .Yes 0 No

□ ■ Yes 0 None reported

□ Yes 0 No

Yes

Yes

0

Identification of major programs:

-Assistance Listing Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Health Center Program Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

2. Financial Statement Findings

None

3. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None

0

$750,000

Yes □

No

None reported

Unmodified

Yes 0 No

No
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Name Board Role

Anna Hamel Director

Angella Chen-Shadeed Director

Dawn McKinney Director

Debra (Debbie) Manning Vice Chair

Jamie Pike Director

Jill Bille Director

Karine Jacques-Batu Director

Karen Schoch Director

Madhab Gurung Director

Obhed Girl Secretary

Oreste "Rusty" Mosca" Director

Richard Elwell Treasurer

Dr. Steve Paris Director

Thomas Lavoie Chair

Vanessa Maradiaga Director
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JANINE JOHNSON, MS OTR/L

Professional Summary
I am q skilled occupational therapist with twenty-four years of experience. I have strong clinical reasoning skills with a
commitment to developing and enhancing my practice through ongoing education and learning. I have extensive
experience working with children with significant developmental, educational, and medical needs in public schools,
homes, doycares, and clinic settings. In the lost twelve years, I hove specialized in the assessment ond treatment of
pediotric feeding and swallowing disorders. Throughout my career, though, my practice has been rooted in the belief
that building strong relationships with families and caregivers through education and collaboration leads to best
possible developmental and therapeutic outcomes.

Experience
NUTRITION, FEEDING, AND SWALLOWING PROGRAM • 2016-PRESENT

Feeding and Swallowing Clinical Supervisor, Amoskeag Health, Manchester, NH -

' Evaluate and support children and young adults from birth through 21 years of age with sensory and motor-
based feeding disorders in their natural settings (home, school, daycare, community).

• Offer consultative feeding and swallowing support to families, caregivers, daycare providers, and school teams

-working with children with a pediatric feeding disorder.

• Collaborate with dieticians, physicians, early intervention providers, nurses, classroom teachers, and school

therapists to best support the child and family.

• Design, execute, and interpret modified barium swallow studies to support the development of plans for the
. safe oral intake of nutrition and hydration.

' Collaborate with families and school teams in the development of safe eating plans to support a student's ability
to safely eat and drink when outside the care of their primary caregivers.

• Supervise feeding and swallowing providers within the program.

' Train and support new feeding and swallowing providers within the program.

• Engage contract stakeholders to foster improvements in timeliness, quality, and accessibility of care.

SOUTHEASTERN REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICES CENTER (SERESC) - 2013-2022 <

Occupational therapy consultant, Bedford, NH

' Provided direct and consultative occupational therapy services and evaluations for special education students in

public schools as part of the Medical-Educational Therapeutic Evaluation (METE) Team.

• Served as team leader for multi-disciplinary evaluations between METE team members, special education
teams, and families through coordination of services, communication among team members, and provision of
evaluation summaries.

• Mentored and supported new members of the METE team.

• Worked as lead occupational therapist for recruiting and hiring additional occupational therapists and co-

leading OT and SLP meetings with the lead speech and language pathologist.

• Evaluated and treated children with fine motor delays, sensory processing disorders, and sensory and motor-
based feeding disorders in home, school, and clinic settings.
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• Completed evaluations using standardized tools, observation, records review, and team interview to develop
lEP outcomes and accommodations to support student success with academics and activities of daily living.

• Offered training and education to caregivers and support providers on sensory processing, fine motor skill
development, and self-care skill development.

EXETER HOSPITAL PEOIATRIC REHABILITATION - 2013-2017

Staff occupational therapist, Epping. NH

•  Provided direct occupational therapy services in an outpatient pediatric clinic and in local preschools,
elementary schools, and high schools.

• Performed evaluations using The Bruininks-Oseretsy Test of Motor Proficiency, second edition; Peabody
Developmental Motor Scales, second edition; Pediatric Evaluation of Disability Inventory; Dunn Sensory Profile -
2; Sensory Processing Measure, and Developmental Test of Visual Motor Integration.

• Assessed and treated children with sensory and motor-based feeding difficulties, fine motor delays, visual motor
delays, sensory processing disorders.

•  Supervised level I and level II occupational therapy students in collaboration with other members of the
occupational therapy staff.

RICHIE MCFARLAND CHILDREN'S CENTER - 2013-2017

Occupational therapy consultant, Stratham. NH

• Worked in Early Supports and Services by providing direct treatment of eligible children, supporting families and
childcare providers through education and home programs, and engaging in service coordination.

COMMUNITY BRIDGES - 2004-2013

Staff occupational therapist, Concord, NH

• Worked in Family Centered Early Supports and Services by participating in eligibility evaluations using the
Hawaii Early Learning Profile, developing Individualized Family Support Plans, providing the direct treatment of
children in the program, supporting families and childcare providers through education and home programs,
and engaging in service coordination.

• Assisted families in connecting with community resources and programs, including Special Medical Services, the
MICE Program. Child Development Clinics, behavioral support programs for children with autism, special
education preschools, and Early Head Start.

NHC REHABILITATION - 2002-2004

Staff occupational therapist, Nashville, TN

WAVES, INC. - 2002-2004

Staff occupational therapist, Franklin. TN

THERAPY SOLUTIONS. INC. — 2001-2002

Staff occupational therapist, Brookfleld, CT

Education

Ithaca College, Ithaca, NY

•  B.S. in Occupational Science -1999

• M.S. in Occupational Therapy - 2001

• Advanced coursework in assistive technology, early intervention, and pediatric neurodevelopmental theory
and practice
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• Thesis project: survey research on means vs. ends use of play in the practice of pediatric occupational
therapy

•  Faculty Award for Special Merit

Professional Development-

•  Presenter at the 2024 NHSLHA conference on Fundamentals for Serving Preschoolers through Young Adults with
Pediatric Feeding Disorders *

•  Pediatric Swallow Studies and Advanced Infant and Pediatric Dysphagia courses by Catherine Shaker -10/2023

• Guest lecturer at the University of New Hampshire graduate speech and language students and at Ithaca College
graduate occupational therapy students on the screening, assessment, and treatment planning for children with
feeding and swallowing disorders. ^

• Guest lecturer at Massachusetts College of Pharmacy and Health Science - Manchester Campus occupational
therapy program on the occupational therapist's role in the evaluation and treatment of children with feeding,
eating, and swallowing disorders

• Advanced courses on theory, assessment, and treatment within a Sensory Integration framework through the
Spiral Foundation - 2016

•  Related Service Providers, lEPs, and Common Core State Standards - Fall 2015

•  Handwriting Without Tears Pre-K and K-5 workshops - Fall 2014

•  Beckman Oral Moto'r Assessment and Intervention - Fall 2013

• Two-day lab course on pediatric myofascial release - Spring 2012

•  Sequential Oral Sensory Approach to Feeding three-day basic course and one-day advance course - July 2011

• Published a case study about the treatment of a child with oral motor and sensory-based feeding delays for the
Early Education and Intervention Network of New Hampshire newsletter

• Co-presented a case study at the 2010 New Hampshire Association for Infant Mental Health Association's
conference about a child with complex behavioral, sensory, medical, and feeding concerns.

• Presented an in-service to the Learning Skills Department of Proctor Academy titled "Handwriting: foundations,
classroom interventions, and indicators for additional support."

Additional Leadership Experience

• Chair of the Concord Chorale Tour Committee leading trips to Canada, Austria, Estonia, Latvia, and Russia
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Liz Dennis, RD, LD, MPH

Experience Nutrition, Feeding, and.Swallowing Program, Manchester, NH
Consulting Dietitian November 2010-Present

• Provide in-home Medical Nutrition Tlierapy for a caseload of 200+ children with special
healthcare needs tliroughout the state of New Hampshire

• Develop goals to meet nutritional needs via oral intake and/or enteral nutrition •
Communicate with physicians, Early Support Services, therapists, school teams, feeding
and swallowing providers, nurses, and case managers as needed to help carry out and meet
nutrition goals

o Manage caseload by prioritizing all new referrals, existing clients, and the agendas of
team members to ensure visits are scheduled in a timely and productive manner

Child Health Services, Manchester, NH

Pediatric Dietitian March 2010-March 2016

• Assess and educate a culturally diverse population of high risk children and their
families as an integral part of a comprehensive medical treatment pediatric clinic

•  Participate in pre and post clinic sessions with an MD, PA, NP, and family support
specialist to review all clients treated

Keene State College, Keene, NH

Adjunct Faculty January 201 1-May2011

-  - • Taught Experimental Foods Lab to undergraduates majoring in the field of nutrition

Cheshire Medical Center/Dartmouth-Hitchcock Keene, Keene, NH

.  Community Health Program Coordinator November 2009-May 201 1
•  Coordinated Families in Training (FIT), an obesity treatment program for children ages

8-12, including recruitment, material development, implementation of the nutrition
curriculum for the children, and tracking of data

•  As chair of the Advocates for Healthy Youth (AFHY) coalition, collaborated with
community stake holders and other coalitions to implement best practice programs to
help reduce childhood obesity in Cheshire.County

•  Supervised dietetic interns and undergraduate nutrition students as they met
requirements either for the American Dietetic Association or their pursued degree

•  Responsible for all senior citizen community health programs, including Cheshire
Walkers, fall and spring presentations at CMC/DHK, and was a member of the
Monadnock Senior Advocates

Department of Health and Environmental Control, Charleston, SC

Nutritionist IV May 2007-0ct0ber 2009

•  Home visits to assess medically complex infants and children with developmental delay

and/or metabolic, gastrointestinal, congenital, and chronic diseases effecting their

nutrition status

•  Developed, implemented, and evaluated nutrition care plans for a caseload of *0 children
•  Regularly communicate with physicians and therapists to ensure continuity of care

Nutritionist 111 ' January 2007-May 2007
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•  Educated women on appropriate feeding practices for their children both individually
and in group settings

•  Helped to ensure that the nutritional needs of pregnant 'women, infants, and children
were met

Nashua Area Health Center, Nashua, NH May 2005-September 2006
Outpatient Nutrition Counselor -

•  Provided culturally sensitive individual counseling to adults and pediatrics in a
community health setting o Assessed, counseled, and educated females with high risk
pregnancies during the first, second, and third trimesters, and participated in bimonthly
interdisciplinary meetings to review their health care plans

• Utilized interpreters, when necessary, to communicate with patients

Southern New Hampshire Medical Center, Nashua, NH July 2004-September 2006 Outpatient
Nutrition Counselor

• Completed a thorough nutrition assessment for adults- and children diagnosed with
overweight/obesity, cardiovascular disease, diabetes, eating disorders, GI disorders, and
food allergies

•  Developed individual meal/feeding plans based on diagnosis, labs, and lifestyle

• Tailored educational infonnation based on patient's knowledge and understanding

•  Implemented a weight managemenl/liealthy eating program for adolescents and their
families by providing group nutrition and physical activity education

Bariatric Dietitian

• Guided individuals to modify diet and behaviors prior to gastric bypass surgery to
encourage successful long-tenn weiglit loss post-surgery

•  Provided detailed instruction on diet stages following surgery

•  Communicated with Obesity Center staff regarding the needs and progress of patients
at weekly meetings

•  RevisedAJpdated Obesity Center Nutrition Handbook

Per Diem Inpatient Dietitian ' '

• Maintained standards of care by providing medical nutrition therapy in an acute care
setting

•  Screened patients based on diagnosis, age, protein stores, and diet tolerance to determine
nutritional risk

Education University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill

Carolina School of Public Health

MPH in Nutrition, August 2004

Chapel Hill,

Clemson University Clemson, South Carolina

BS in Biological Science May 2001

Certification/ American Council on Exercise Certified Personal Trainer, February 2004-Februaty 2010
Licensure Certificate in Adult Weight Management, 2004
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Volunteer Cross Cultural Solutions, October 3, 2006-November 4, 2006

Experience , worked at a local orphanage in Tanzania, Africa housing children ages newborn to seven
years old to provide emotional support and input regarding feeding routines
Camp Needles in the Pines Diabetes Camp, July 2003

•  Provided around the clock supervision for children and adolescents diagnosed with Type I
diabetes, including help with carbohydrate counting, insulin dosage, and treatment of a
low blood sugar

References Available Upon Request
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Sarah Belhumeur

OBJECTIVE

Obtain o job in the public health nutrition field and use skills to promote
the overall health of individuals. Particularly interested in a specification in
research and nutritional policies.

.CORE COMPETENCIES .

• Work well as an individual

contributor ond teom ployer with
nolurolleodership obllity -

• Self-motivoted, multi-tasking, fast'
; paced worker who performs urider •
pressure ond able to meet

•  deadlines

V • Strong cuslomer.focus with
-•oufslandirig cornmunicoflbn ond;.
.preseritdlipn skills J
Problem solver with.excellent;"
reasoning, logic, and critical thinking
skills ■. T

• Able to convey concepts through'
distinguished public speaking skills
and motivationol interviewing ,i
techniques

EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS

Bachelor's of Science '
Public Health - Nutrition .
Minor of Business Moriagement ' -

• ■ Keene State College, Keene.-NH
• CumLoude" .. .. . ,
• ServSofe certification
• 'Early Sprouts certification.

Professional and;Educati6nar
Irhplementatlon ■ •

Procticum , ' " ■* , ,
'• Leodio cornriiunlty^weliness

educational lesson for seventh ond,. -
eigtithgrode students

• Coordinated a rriepl at the cpllege
'  , dining commons for three ttipusbnd -

,  . people , • • ' ' ' -. .
'• Research experience '• '

TECHNICAL SKILLS; •

• Proficient'In a variety of operating
systems including Windows, Mdc OS

,  XondlOS .
• 'Experience with qiwide array of-

Microsoft technologies including •
Microsoft Excel Word, PowerPoint'^

■and Outlook
• Working knowledge oTSAP Concur

Tectinologies
^perierice designing jn Convo

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE.,

,  Hundred Nights Homeless-Shelter ,
• Outfitters Second Hand Shop
• Taught summer dosses for two
1  consecutive-years
•. Over one hundred volunteer hours In

the past six yeors -
• Observed niuliiple appointments at'

- ' -the WiC Nutrition Otfice-
' Manchester. t^H and'Keene, NH ■.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Nufr/fron, feeding & Swallowing Program Coordinator
Amoskeag Health

.Oct 2018 - Present
/vtonchesfer, NH

Responsible for overseeing the day to doy operations of the Nutrition,
Feeding & Swallowing program ^
Analyze medical records and works with patients to determine present
conditions and program eligibility
Coordinate the appropriate level of pediatric care

•  Adheres to HIPAA (Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act)
guidelines
Work to design, conduct and integrate outcomes of quality assuronce
activities into program operations; prepare annual report
Professionally address programmatic feedback and/or complaints from
key stakeholders and patients
Supervise the Nutrition Network Program Assistant

Student Dief/f/on Peb 2018-Apr 2018
Keene State College Keene. NH

Confidently used the nutrition core process and collected
anthropometries, biochemical data, food and nutrition related history,
client history and physical findings
Assessed patient's nutritional status, developed plans of core and
evaluated outcomes using Nutrition Diagnosis Statements (PES and
ADIME) . •
Accurately calculated nutrition prescriptions including calories, /
mocronutrient and fluid needs
Provided appropriate nutritional education
Identified appropriate nutritional risk of patients and intervened based on
established criteria such as the Nutrition Diagnostic Terminology
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BROOKE CORMIER

b c o r m i c r @ !i m o s k t a g h c a 11 li. o I' g

• t" P-ROFESSilONAL. SUMMARY

Results-driven and detail-oriented professional in special medical scn-ices and behavioral health medical billing with extensive
experience in administrative support. Highly adaptable and skilled communication specialist with extensive experience in
planning, organizing and scheduling logistics.

TARE AS'OF EXPERTISE ;

✓ AthcnaOnc Scheduling ✓ Intcragcncy Data ✓ Administrative Team

Patient Registration Reporting Collaboration

•/ Medical Record ✓ AihenaOne Claim ✓ Patient Encounter

Management Creation Tracking
✓ i'i.ncoiinter Billing ✓ Relationship Building ✓ Insurance Verification

Submission

PROFESSIONA-L EXPERIENCE

Billing and Reimbursement Specialist, Aifioskeag Heallh SpedolMedical Programs, N.H \ October 2022 — Present

Ptwidc admimsh-ative and hilling support to the Nufiilion, Feeding, and Swallowing program, ensuring effidenl setvice delivety and mmbursement
for childmi with nutritional and feeding challenges. Kesponsihilities include managing patient records, investigating insurance coverage, submitting
billing, and collaborating with both intenial and external Jeams to ensutr timely deliveiy of high-quality sendees while increasing insurance
reimbursements.

•  Enter and maintain patient information, manage billing processes, and track visit utilization^"Collaborate with providers
and external entities to ensure proper doeumentaticin, service billing, and denial management.

Special Projects Director, Alnoba/Pinnacle J^.eadership & Team Dcveloprnent, Kensington, NH \ january 2020 — March 2022

Supposed the Genera! Manager of Operations ofAlnoha and Pinnacle Leadership Program Managers in coordinating leadership training logtstics
across 11 facilities, 600 acres of trails and 3 aerial ropes courses. Managed all aspects of event booking, billing, contract oration and updates.
Responsibilities included ensuring smooth execution ofweekly trainings and hartdling special requests to meet client needs and ensure safety.

• Managed and enhanced the outdoor programs offered at Alnoba. Supervised i:he rccniitmcnt, training, and management

of the 25 person volunteer doccnt team to provide engaging and informative tours, ensuring seamless execution of the
programs and tours.

I  .. ' PROFESSIONAL REFERENCES

Sue Ford, Waypoint (Richie McFarland (dinical Program Director) 603-.303-1639
Bruce Cillcy, General Manager Kensington NM Operations Pinnacle Ixadership 603-686-1804
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Wendy A. Labrecque

ObJecHve;

Sunimai7 of
Qualiflcations:

Employment
History:

Accomplishments:

Community/
Volunteer Service:

Education:

Continuing Ed.

Participate as a contributing member in a team that wili best utilize acquired skills, education, and
experience in accounting.

Includes over 20 years In a wide variety of accounting and fiscal management capacities, involving:

Extensive experience with the day-to-day accounting operations of a non-profit organization,
encompassing skills and responsibilities for the oversight of multiple accounts, including ledger
balancing and posting, AR/AP, collections and reconciliations, as well as budgetary planning,
forecMting and adherence management, P & L analysis, cost containment, IRS tax (990), expense
reporting, balance investments In subsidiaries with the corresponding companies' current year
contributions/distributions and aviation flight tracking spreadsheets for IRS purposes.

Producing operating statements and financial year/end reports, preparation and coordination of
internal/external (IRS) and funding source audit processes (A133), in addition to experience with
corporate consolidation, acquisitions and merger activities, and performing regular intra/intcr- fiscal
accounting break-downs and analysis of consolidated balance sheets for multiple corporate entities.

Comprehensive knowledge and hands-on experience with grant administration, budgeting, and
reporting/compliance requirements, managing up to 40 grants simultaneously.

Familiarity with the following computer systems and applications: Windows XP, Microsoft Word 07,
Excel 2010, Excel Piviot Tables, Access, PowerPoint,.Solomon, Quicken,'ADP Payroll, Peachtree,
Yard!, People Soft, NVision and a variety of data management packages.

As a team player, providing substantial Input into problem solving and quality assurance activities.

Additional skills and experience: effective interpersonal and communications skills; coordination of
volunteer-based programs, including supervision, training and task assignment responsibilities for up
to 20

volunteers.

.Sr. Accountant

Accountant

EASTER SEALS OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, Manchester, Fm
March2013-August20!4 -
RJ FINLAY MANAGEMENT, Nashua, NH
2008-2013

CHARTER TRUST COMPANY, Concord, NH
2005 ■ 2008 Flnflnclfll A«lstftdl
EASTER SEALS OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, Manchester, NH
1984-2005 Held various positions from Accounting Clerk to Sr. Accountant

Recognized for outstanding job performance and presented: The Carousel of Accomplishment/
President's Meritorious Setylce Award.

Easter Seals Telethon Pledge Center Coordinator Bio Brothers/Bio Sisters

NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE

Manchester, NH

GOFFSTOWN HIGH SCHOOL, Goffstown, NH

Economics / Accounting 1 & 2
Managerial Accounting Program

Diploma

Attended numerous employer sponsored courses, programs and seminars, including: Managing
Multiple Priorities, Customer Services, Budgeting Principles, Computer Applications: Excel07,
Microsoft Word 07 etc.

References: Excellent professional and personal references are available and will be furnished upon request.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Amoskeag Health

NAME JOB title:

ANNUAL

AMOUNTPAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

:  ANNUAL-

SALARY

Janine Johnson Feeding & Swallowing Supervisor $96,314.40 $110,073.60

Elizabeth Dennis
Clinical Supervisor and

Nutritionist
$62,192.00 $71,760.00

Sarah Belhumeur Intake and Referral $38,727.00 $46,472.40

Brooke Cormier Biller $25,954.76 $27,320.80

Wendy Labrecque Accountant $1,813.24 $58,023.68

$0.00 $0.00
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Lorl Wttvfr ̂
'latcrlm Cooimiuloiifr'

MdiMfi. A. Hardy
Director

Q JUN08?23Pti 2:19 RCU

STATE OF NEW HAMKHDRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVIGES

biVlSlON OF LONG TERM SUPPOHTS AI^D

105 PLEASANT STREET; CONCORDrNH < 03301
^  66i^2U.5634 i-«ki^«-J345 ExL

FaK:..603-271.SI6( . TDD Access: l4|pO*V3S>29M www.dhhs.'n'h;gov'

June 7; 2023

His Excelje'ncy,. Governor Ghristo'i^er T; Sunuhu
andlhe^HonprabieGpun^^

State Ho.use
jC^ncprci.'f^ew 'Hampshire,0330j

REQUESTED ACTiON

.AuthPrIze the Diepailment of Health and Human Services, pivisioh of Long Term Supports
\and..Se{vlceelrto airiehd.an existing cpntfaPt with AmPskeag;HeaJth.(VC#
iQh, foflpngoing Gomprehensive'Nutrition.. Feeding .and Swallowing 'Netv^6rk;foK~GhiIdre^
Specjal Healtrt^C by exercising a contrad. renewal pption b^jjjncreasingrthe

■iprice-ijmitatioh; by,$1,070,606 fr,o^^^ $2i140;0b0 and.extendjhg.t'hewrnp^ date'
from June- SO, 2023 to June^SOi/idYS,-effective July i, 2023, upon Governor and Couhcll^appfbya
■25%;|:e^er^"Funds^

The original contract was apprpved by Governor arid Council on June 36?2d2-i,
•  1 - ■

,^.punds"are anticipated to be;available in State Fiscal Years 2024 arid,'202^5."uppri ^"e,
.aVaiiaMity 'apd*co.ntinu^. approRnation';of ftinds- in -tHe-JUture •ojwratii^-ib.udget'.vW.ffH^
rtp.adjuslbudget lineJtems v^thirt the pficeliirriitatidn and encumbrances between state;fiscaLyears
thrpugh fhe'Budget Office, if neected arid jus^ ^

05i5-93.930010-51910000;HEALTH,AND SOCIAL SERVldES. bEPtSF HEALtW AND,HUMAN
.HHS: bEVELOPMENTAL. SVCSvbl^ DEVELbPMENtAL iSERViCES, SRECIAL MEOlbAL
^SERVICES ' '

Fiscal
Year

C.lass/
Accourif

Class Title
Job

Number
'  Current-

Budget

increased
(becreased)'

Arriount

'  ̂ Revised
Budget

. 2022 074-500589
Grants for Pub
Asst and Relief

93001000 $535,000 i $0 $535;000

2023 b74r5d0589
Grants for pub
Asd and Relief

93001000 ■$535,000 $0' $535,000 ■

262.4 i ;'074-500589
Grants for Pub,
Asd arid Relief

93001000'
i

'  $0' ;$535.000' $535,000

. 2025; i ,074:506589;,^ Grants for,Pub
Asst and Relief;

93001000 $0 $535,066 ;  $535;000

Subtotal ;
i

$1,070,pod 1^76,000: $2ii4o;oo6-
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His Exceneh^. Governor Chrtslopher T. Sununu
and Ihe Honorable CouncH

Pafle 2 of 3 . ^ >

EXPLANATION
'  j'-

The piir^se of this'request is for the Contractor to continue to'provide comprehensive
community bas^ nutrition, feeding and swallov^ng consultation network services to children with
special health care needs (CSHCN). The services involve staff Identification, training, and
oversight of staff, assessment of the needs of CSHCN. Services also include the planning for
and development of safe feeding plans, management of feeding tubes, aspiration management,
and consultatjonr Additionally, this request revises the scope of work to transition eligibility
determination for these services from the Contractor to the Department's ̂ Bureau of Family
Centered Services. Additionally, the Department is requesting to modify data entry requirements.

The Contractor will provide services to children and youth ages from birth to 21 years with
special health cafe needs for whom' nutrition concerns have been identified. Nutritional
consultation helps ensure their optimal nutrition, growth, and development. In addition, families
and caregivers of children arid youth with special health care needs.-will receive swallowing
evaluation reports, consultations, and follow up visits that assist them to effectively manage their
children's feeding arid svyallowing issues.

Approxirhately 1,500 individuals will be served, annually, during State Fiscal Years 2024
and 2025.

-  The nutrition, feeding and swallowing program delivers family centered,, coordinated care
y^h highly competent nutrition providers and feeding and swallowing specialists. Home^ased
service delivery allows for observations in the child's natural environment, providing a more
complete picture of the child, and family, and their nutrition, feeding and svyallovvtng concerfis.
Additionally, the nutrrtion„feeding and swallowing program provides family centered services to
children at locations such as child care programs, schools, physician's offices and outpatient
therapy programs. This allows for collaboration between'the family, nutritidri, feeding and
swallowing providers and other providers as well as opportunity to address the child's nutrition,
''feeding arid swallowing concerns in other relevant locations.

The Department will monitor services by reviewirig case records, ensuring all
requirements are met. and eighty-five percent (85%) of children with special health care needs or
their family or guardian, responding to a Department approved survey, will indicate satisifaction
with the services provided. i

A, • '•

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agfeerhent Provisions, Section 1.
Subsection 1.1, of the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for
up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery pf services, available funding,
agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for two (2) of the four (4) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, nearly 850 children ̂ Nvith
special health care needs vvhp are in need of nutritional consultation will lose the services they
have in place, or not have access to new services to help assure their optimal nutrition, growth
and development. In addition,families and caregivers of up to'650 children and yputh.with special
health care needs will not receive swallowing evaluations, consultations and follow up visits that
assist them 'to effectively manage their children's' feeding and swallowing issues.
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His Excetlency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

Area served; Statevnde.

:Source of Federal Funds: CFDA #93.994. FAIN #.B09SM010035 and B0445230.
T.-'

In'the event that the Federal Funds become no tonger available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lor\*X. Weaver ..
lnte^Commis$ibner>

V"

The Oeparlmenl of Health and Human Seruicet' Mission is lo join comniuniiies ond^fomiUes
in pnviding opportunities for ciiiunt to achieve health and independence.
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•  OocuSIgh Envelope ID: 24i82DA5-2AFB-47B3-88Cl-C448O83El770

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health.and Human Services

Amendment#!

This Amendment to the Comprehensive Nutrition. Feeding and Swallowing Networl< for Children with.
Special Health Care Needs contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health
and Hurnan Services ("State" or "Department") and Airioskeag Health ("the Cpntractor"): -=

whereas', pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved' by the Governor and Executive Couricil
on June 30.2021. (Item #32).. the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consjderation of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A. Revisions to'
Standard Agreement Provisions. Section 1, Subsection 1.1, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and.

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of-the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in" the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.6. Account Number,'to read:

■05-95-93-930010-51910000,
2. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block .1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June30,.2025 '
3. Form P-37.General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,140,000

4. Form P-37, Genera! Provisions. Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Robert W. Moore, Director

5. .Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B. Amendment #1.
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit C Payment'Terms. Section 3 to read:

3. Payment shall be ori a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line iterh. as
specified in Exhibits C-l,"Budget through Exhibit C-4. Amendment#!. SFY 2025 Budget.

7. Add Exhibit C-3, Amendment #1, SFY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

.  8. Add Exhibit C-4, Amendment #1. SFY 2025 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

OS

■A
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1. 2023. upon Governor and Council approval. - - ■

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below, i

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

S/30/2023

Date

C—OocuSl^d by:
Name: Melissa Hardy

Title: dltss--'

5/26/2023

Date

Amoskeag Health
-OoeuSlffntdby;

'■ihL:

fg3i^e!''i^rT^s'Hiccracken
Title: Presi dent/CEO

Amoskeag Health
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The preceding'Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•DocuStoM^^

5/30/2023 (3

Date . NameT^®^ cuanno
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and. Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ^ (date of meeting) ^

•  OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title;

Amoskeag Health . A-S-1,2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human iServices
Comprehensive.Nutrition, Feeding and Swallowing Network for Children with Special Health Care Needs

EXHIBIT B

Amendment#1

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1 The Cohti;actor must provide comprehensive Nutrition, Feeding and
Swallowing Network (NFSN) services statewide to children and youth birth to
age twenty-one (21) with special medical needs, as defined in RSA 132:13, II,
and their families, whose medical complexity requires highly specialized
•consultation and treatment from pediatric dietitians and/or feeding and
swallowing specialists, jointly referred, to herein as service provider specialists.

1.2 . The Contractor must ensure services are ayailable statewide.

1.3 The Contractor must ensure that delivery of services comply with any state of
emergency declaration, with approval from.the Department.

1.4 For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days must mean business'
days. ■- •"

1.5 The. Contractor must provide all services in accordance with all applicable
legislative and programmatic requirements, includihg New, Hampshire
Administrative Rule He-M 500, Developmental Services, Part 520, Children's
Special Medical.Services, which includes", but is not limited to,-rules pertaining

.to: " " r
1.5.1 Program eligibility. ,

1.5.2 Services provided. .
1.5.3 Limitation of services.

1.5.4 Appeals.
s  .

1.5.5 Waivers. ^
1:6 The Contractor must maintain compliance with applicable federal and state

regulations, policies, and procedures set forth by the Department.

1.7 The Contractor must confirm eligibility and active enrollment with the
Department, prior to the intake process and provision of services.

1.8 The Contractor must ensure the intake process is conducted using the
- comprehensive NFSN Screening Tool, and:

1.8.1 Assessment visits (encounters) are conducted at a time and place of
the family's choice, face-to-face or via telehealth; and

1.8.2 Referrals are processed from agencies in coordination with the
Department, which must include, but are not limited to:

1.8.2.1 Families.

1.8.2.2 Healthcare providers.
1.8.2.3 Community-based agencies.

RFP-2022-DLTSS-04-COMPR-01-A01 Amoskeag Heallh Conlraclor IrtliaJs ^
;  . •; 5/26/2023'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Comprehonslvo Nutrition, Feeding and Swallowing Network for Children with Special Health Care Needs

EXHIBIT B

Amendment #1

1.8.2.4 Primary or speciafty care medical providers.

1.8.2.5 Family Centered Early Supports and Services (FCESS).

1.8.2.6 Schools and daycare programs.

1.8.2.7 United States Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition
Service, Special Supplemental Nutrition Program • for
Women. Infants, and Children (WIC).

1.9 The Contractor must provide home or community-based assessments,'
intervention recommendations, and ongoing monitoring of the growth and

.  health status of children and youth accepted for services by the comprehensive
NFSN and the Bureau for Family Centered Services (BFCS), including, but not

i. limited to: : '

1.9.1 Providing specialized assistance from: '

1.9.1.1 - Pediatric dietitians;

1.9.1.2 Speech arid language pathologists; and

1.9.1.3 Occupational therapists.

1.9.2 Implernenting and monitoring on-going strategies for:

1.9.2.1 Feeding skill development;

1.9.2.2 ̂  Swallow safety;

v> 1.9.2.3 Irnproving and monitoring of growth and nutrition status; and

'  1.9.2.4 Promoting Health Care Coordinatiori to assist families with
access to and financing for recommended:

1.9.2.4.1 Supplies;

1.9.2.4.2 Medical equipment;'

1.9.2.4.3 Therapeutic tools; and

.1.9.2.4.4 Formula. /'■'

1.10 the Contractor must oversee the reporting process and review documentation
from the service provider specialists for completeness and accuracy.

1.11 The Contractor must:

1.11.1 Ensure that.s'ervice provider specialists who comprise the NFSN are
available for consultation-and technical assistance to all Department
and community-based coordinators and clinic coordinators.

1.11.2 Develop and maintain educational material, policies and'procedures,
training material, and a performance evaluation plan, and collaborate
with other agencies as needed.

1.11.3 Identify an individual who will provide clinical guidanc

RFP.2022-OLTSS-04-COMPR-01-A01 Amoskeag Heallh Contfactw Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Comprohonslve Nutrition, Feeding and Swallowing Network for'Children with Spoclal Health Care Needs

EXHIBIT B

Amendment#!

competency development to service provider specialists and oversee
feeding and swallowing billing and reimbursement.

1.1 f.4 Identify an individual who will be available to provide education and
consultation at the professional training level, to institutions, and to
community service providers.

1.11.5 Ensure each service provider specialist receives support and training,
including, but not limited to:

1.11.5.1 On-the-job competency training, including no less than two
(2) education and training sessions of no less than eight (8)
hours each, which may include, but is not limited mandatory
and clinical competency based training.

1.11.5.2 Support with scheduling, designing, analyzing and
documenting swallow study reports.

^  1.11.5.3 On-going support to pfoblem-solve difficult clinical
situations.

1.11.5.4 Assistance with reviews and edits of provider documents.

1.11.6 Ensure the required data is entered into the Department's on premise,
pata System, Special Medical Services (SMS), also known -as the
SM,S Data System, within five (5) business days of receipt or
encouriter.

I  . . 1.11.7 Ensure that eligibility and insurance status is confirmed with the
(  Department prior to providing services.

1.11.8 Ensure family participation in the evaluation plan is encouraged.

1.11.9^ Ensure NFS.N service provider specialists attend program-related
Department trainings and meetings.

1.11.10 Ensure referrals are made to other BFCS and community services as
appropriate, including, but not limited to:

1.10.1 Health Care Coordination'.

1.10.2 BFCS Nurse Consultation.

1.10.3 Child Development Clinic.

1.10.4 New Hampshire Family Voices.

1.10.5 Complex Care Network (CCN) and'CCN Consultation.

1.10.6 FCESS.

1.10.7 Area Agency for Developmental Services.

1.10.8 Hospitals.

RFP.2022-DLTSS-04-COMPR^VA01
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Comprohonslvo Nutrition, Fooding and Swallowlng.Nctwork for Children with Special Health Care Needs

EXHIBIT B

Amendment #1

1.12 Th'e Contractor must ensure a CliriicaL Supervisor oversees the reporting,
process and reviews documentation from the Dietitians, .including, but not

t  ' limited to, reviewing nutrition reports prepared using the Nutrition Care Process
format. .

1

1.13 The Contractor must promote family centered care in accordance with the
National Academy for State Health Policy (NASHP) National .Care Coordination
Standards for Children and Youth with Special Health Care Needs (CYSHCN),

'  including:

'1.13.1 Engaging in collaborative care planning with Department staff
resources, including BFCS Nurse Consultants, Health Care
Coordinators, and community-based providers to:

1.13.1.1 Ensure coordination of .care;

;  . 1.13.1-.2 Facilitate interagency referrals;-

1.13.1.3 Coordinate joint training and planning for shared clients;

1.13.1.4 Develop Individual Family Service Plans OFSP); and

1.13.1.5 Develop Safe^Eating Plans (SEP).

1.13.2 Providing comprehensive nutrition assessment and planning in-
consultation with, the family that reflects the child and family
preferences and goals.

1.14 The Contractor must ensure collaboration with community-based agencies that-
include, but are not limited to:

■1.14.1 Primary care and specialty care physicians.
1.14.2 Schools. ;

■  1.14.3 FCESS programs.

1.14.4 Hospitals.

1.14.5 Neo-Natal Intensive Care Units. - \
'  1.14.6, Special Care Nurseries. V

1.14.7 Pediatric Specialists.

1.14.8 Massachusetts General Hospital/Massachusetts Eye & Ear Infirmary
.  (MEEI) Aerodigeslive Clinic. '

1.14.9 Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) to:

1.14.9.1 Provide information about the benefits of breastfeeding;

1.14.9.2 Recommend formula and specialty formula as appropriate;
and

*,,, 1.14.9.3 Share nutrition reports with WIC providers, with appi^al

RFP-2022-DLTSS-04-COMPR-01-A01 Amoskeag Health Contractor IniilaJs,
i  •" ^ '5/26/2023

8-1.0 Page 4 of 14 Dale



Oocusign Envelope ID; EDEB80F3-A517-4FE5-800F-39CD7EA6C800

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2'i182DA5-2AF^7B3-88C1-C44B0B3E1779

New Hampshire Department 6f Health and Human Services
Comprehensive Nutrition, Feeding and Swallowing Network for Children with Special Health Care Needs

EXHIBIT B

Amendment #1

from the child's family.

V  1.14.10 Equipment vendors to;

1.14.10.1 Facilitate formula changes, including increases or
decreases in volume; and

1.14.10.2 Secure tube-feeding supplies, as needed by families.

1.14.11 Home-care nursing providers to:

1.14.11.1 Develop SEPs; and

1.14.11.2 Coordinate in-home service's.

^  1.14.12 New Hampshire Family Voices {NHFV).

1.14.13 Head Start and early childhood education programs.

1.14.14 Other providers as needed to identify and locale services for children
determined to be ineligible for NFSKi services. ^

1.15 The Contractor must maintain office space, and provide, services at locations
throughout the State, at the convenience of the farnlly, which must include, but
not be limited to:

1.-15.1 Homes.

1.15.2 Schools.

1.15.3 Provider sites.

1.15.4 Family Resource Centers.

1.15.5 Hospitals.

1.15.6 Area Agencies.

1.15.7 Community Health Centers. _

1.16 The Contractor must pro'vide competency training in pediatric feeding and
swallowing disorders to families and community-based personnel serving
children, including, but not limited to:

•  1.16.1 Part C Early Intervention programs.

1.16.2 Childcare providers.

1.16.3 School-based personnel.

1.17 The Contractor must review and propose alternative means of service provision
including telehealth, when appropriate and it meets the needs of the family.

1.18 The Contractor must ensure attendance at meetings, trainings, and activities
as requested by the Department.

1.19 The Contractor must conduct an annual Family Satisfaction Surve^jnd
provide the results to the Department.

-  RFP-2022-DLTSS-04.COMPR-01-A01 Amoskeag Heanh Contraclor inilials
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EXHIBIT B

Amendment #1.

1.20 The Contractor must maintain a staff'that at a minimum includes, but is not
liniited to:

1.20.1 One (1) Director (.20 FIE).

1.20.2 ■ One ,(1) Accountant (.0875 FIE).

1.20.3 One (1) Program Biller (.375 FTE).

1.20.4 One (1) Clinical Supervisor (.60 FTE).

1.20.5 One (1) Registered Dietitian (one FTE).

1.20.6 One ,(1) Intake and Referral Coordinator (.75 FTE).

1.21 The Contractor must adhere to the following staffing requirernents:

.1.21.1 The Department must be notified in writing within one (1) week of hire
of when a new nutrition or feeding and swallowing specialist is hired to
work in the program. A resume of the employee must accompany this
notification.

1.21.2 In the event of a vacancy in any of the staff positions, the Contractor
must immediately recruit for the position and communicate with the;
Department; This communication must include the following:

1.21.2.1 Name of individual:

,  1.21.2.2 Last date Qf employment; .

1.21.2.3 Plan for coverage, including the name, phone number, and
email for the primary contact during the vacancy; and

1.21.2;4 Copy of communication provided to families and partners
announcing the change in staffing.

1.22 The Contractor must make a request in writing to the Department before hiring
new program personnel who do not meet the required staff qualifications. The
Department may approve a waiver based on the heeds of the program and/or
the Individuars experience and education.

1.23 All health professionals must obtain and maintain a National Provider
^  Identification (NPI) number and credentiallng with the Council for Affordable

Quality Healthcare (CAQH).

<  1.24 All Dietitians must obtain, maintain, and provide documentation of a State of
,  New Hampshire Dietetic license.

1.25 Dietitians must have a Bachelor's degree in nutrition science, foods and
nutrition, or home economics, or a Masters degree in nutrition science, nutrition
education, or public, health nutrition, and current Registered Dietitian ..status in
accordance with the Commission on Dietetic Registration of the American
Dietetic Association. • *

09
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Comprehenslvo Nutrition. Fooding and Swaltow/lng Network for Children with Special Health Care Needs

EXHIBIT B

Amendment #1

1.26 At! dietitians, nutrition, and feeding and swallowing specialist providers must:

1.26.1^7^btain, maintain, and provide documentation of professional liability
insurance.

1.26.2 Have the'appropriate New Hampshire licensure consistent with their
clinical preparation.

1.26.3 Hold a Bachelor's degree in a health-related field, or a Master's degree
in speech and language therapy or occupationartherapy.

1.26.4 Demonstrate knowledge and understanding of anatomy and
physiology of the normal swallowing reflex, and how this automatic
activity may be impaired or diminished in children with disabilities,
which includes;

1.26.4.1 Knowledge of normal growth and development;

1.26.4.2 Knowledge of federal and state legislation regarding service
provision to children with disabilities; ;

1.26.4.3 Knowledge of the education and consultative processes;

'  1.26.4.4 Ability to organize work, analyze problems and
recomrhend/implement solutions; and

,, ' 1.26.4.5 Ability to establish and maintain cooperative working
.  relationships with medical, educational and allied health

•" service providers.

1.27 The Contractor must recruit for and maintain a workforce that is culturally,
linguistically, racially, and ethnically diverse.

1.28 Prior to start of employment or for vojunteer work, the Contractor must, after
obtaining signed and notarized authorization from the person or persons for
whom infbrmatiori is being sought:

1.28.1 Obtain and verify at leasttwo (2) references for ihe person;

1.28.2 Submit the person's name for review against the Bureau of Elderly and
Adult Services (BEAS) state registry maintained pursuant to RSA 161-
F:49; ' ' '

1.28.3 Submit the person's name for review against the Division for Children.
Youth and Families (DCYF) state registry maintained pursuant to RSA

.  , ' 169-C:35; ■

1.28.4 Complete a crirninal records check to ensure that the person has no
history of: < ^ '

1.28.4.1 Felony conviction:.or .

1.28.4.2 Any misdemeanor conviction involving: ^

RFP-2022-OLTSS-O4-COMPR-01-A01 • Amoskeag Health Contractor IrttiaJs
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Amendment #1

1.28.4.2.1 Physical'or sexual assault;

1.28.4.2'.2 Violence;

1.28.4.2.3 Exploitation;

1.28.4.2.4 Child pornography;

1.28.4.2.5 Threatening or reckless conduct;

1.28.4.2.6 Theft;

1.28.4.2.7 Driving under the influence of drugs or alcohol;
or , .

1.28.4.2.8" Any other conduct that represents evidence of
behavior that could endanger the well-being of
a consumer; and

I

-  ■ .. 1.28.4.3 Complete a motor vehicles record check to ensure that the
person has a vajid driver's license; and

-  1.28.4.4 Submit a signed "Access to SMS/PIH - User Request Form"
via email to BFCS@dhhs.nh.gov.

1.29 The Contractor must coordinate a system integrating public and private funding
to sustain the availability of specialized feeding and swallowing, services to
CYSHCN throughout the State that includes, but is not limited to:

1.29.1 Developing and maintaining relationships with third-party insurance
payers, including Medicaid, and public health funders.

1.29.2 Developing a system to negotiate and secure reimbursements for
feeding and swallowing services, and to serve as the paymaster for
the established network of community-based providers'fee-for-servlce
and training activities, that must include, but not be limited to:

u; "1.29.2.1 Ensuring each dietician, occupational therapist, and speech
language pathology provider maintains a credential with
every insurance carrier that will provide a credential. >

1.29.2.2- Billing insurance payers including, but not limited to,
Medicaid, for nutrition services through the Contractor's
billing department.

1.29.2.3 Checking each claim for accuracy.

1.29.2.4 Adding additional modifiers when needed.

1.29.2.5 Following up with and reaching final resolution for each
claim that is:

OS

-  1.29.2.5.1. Unpaid;

1.29.2.5.2 Partially paid; or
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EXHIBITB

Amendment #1

1."29.2.5.3 Not acknowledged as received.

1.29.2.6 Ensuring requests for prior authorization for services are
processed and submitted as necessary.

I

1.29.2.7 Obtaining approval in advance" for additional dietary
services when required.

1.29.2.8 Submitting requests for rehabilitation services, including, but
not limited to, services provide by feeding and swallowing
network providers no later than two (2) weeks prior to the
start of each month for services scheduled in the coming
month; and

1.29.2.9 Obtaining medical orders and insurance prior authorization
no less than three (3) days in advance;

1.29.2.10 Completing and submitting Insurance claims, including, but
not limited to, Medicaid, and billing data each week;

1.29.2.11 Investigating each unpaid claim; and

1.29.2.12 Providing additional' information as requested by the
insurance payer.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

- 2.1 The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance'with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule)-(45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Porlability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996,- arid in

* accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2 The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3 The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits 0 through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein. '

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1 The Contractor must submit an annual reports, site review documents, and
performance measures data (e.g. family satisfaction surveys) in accordance
.with Department guidance.

3.2 The Contractor must submit an annual report using a template provided by the
Department, which includes, but is not limited to:

3.2.1 Results of annual satisfaction survey.

3.2.2 Performance measures.
>
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EXHIBIT B

Amendment #1

>  3.2.3 Success stories as result of services provided.

3.2.4 Quality assurance and improvement activities.

... . '■ 3.2.5 Qualitative and quantitative information relative to outcomes.

3.2.6 Overall progress toward program goals.
3.2.7 Future plans or goals. = '

3.3 The Contractor must ensure data is entered, documents uploaded, and case
records are maintained in the Department's on premise Data System, Special
Medical Services (SMS), also known as the SMS Data System, within five (5)
business days of receipt of information of an encounter, as required by the
Department, which must include, but not,be limited to:
3.3.1 Discharge information. • '' ''

3.3.2 Encounters, assessments of needs and individual's goals, referrals, and
' encounter/progress notes.

"3.3.3 Uploading of documents, including, but not limited to:
3.3.3.1 BROS Application for Services.

3.3.3.2 . Assessments. .

3.3.3.3 DLTSS.-BFCS Authorization for Release of Protected' Health
and Education Information to BROS.

3.3.3.4 Waiver requests and approvals, if applicable." '
3.3.3.5 NFS Reports that include, but are not limited to, service plans.

3.3.3.6 Evaluations.

3.3.4 Medical records oh each recipient of services, as applicable.
3.3.5 The Department may request additional information at any time during

the contract period. v ,

3.4 Department Owned Devices, Systems and Network Usage
3.4.1 If Contractor staff are authorized by the Department's Information

Security Office to access the Department's network in the fulfilment of
this Agreement, the Contractor must:

3.4.1.1 . Sign and abide by applicable Department and New
Hampshire Department of Information Technology (NH DolT)
use agreements, policies, standards, procedures and
guidelines, and complete applicable trainings as required;

3.4.1.2 Use the information that they have permission to access
solely for coridiicting official Department business and agree
that all other use or access is strictly forbidden includA9[>^ut
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EXHIBIT B

Amendment#!

not limited; to "personal or other private and non-Department
'  - use;^nd that at no lime shall.they access or attempt to access

information without having the express authority of the
Department to do so;

3.4.1.3. Not access or attempt to access information in a manner
inconsistent with the approved policies, procedures, and/or

,  agreement relating to system entry/access; and .

'■ " 3.4.1.4 Not copy, share,, distribute, sub-license,"rnodify. reverse
~  engineer, rent, or sell software licensed, devefoped, or being

evaluated by the Deparlment, and at all times must use
utmost care to protect and keep such software strictly
confidential in accordance with the license or any other
agreement executed by the Department.

4; Performance Measures

4.1 The Department will monitor performance of the Contractor by reviewing
responses to an annual Department-approved survey, indicating that eighty-
five percent (85%) of CSHCN or their family or guardian responding indicate'
satisfaction with services they received.

4.2 The^Contractor.must collaborate actively and regularly with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.3 The Contractor niay be required to proyide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service

■data.

4.4 Where applicable, the Contractor must, collect and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes
5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent .future state or federal

legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services described
herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith. ,

5.2. Federal Civil Rights .Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Programs and Services

5.2.1. the Contractor must subrfiit. within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access and
language assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful-

. access.to programs and/or services to individuals with limited ^Sfeh
RFP-2022-DLTSS-04-COMPR-01-A01 AmosKeag Health Contractor tniiials.
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Amendment #1

proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss;'individuals
who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who have speech
challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership v:

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports'and other
materials prepared during'or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement. "The
preparation of this freport, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services,, with funds provided in part by the State> of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the-United States Department of Health and Human
Services." •> ,

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior, approval from the Department before printing, production,,
distribution, or use.

,  5.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and ail original
materials produced, including, but not limited

5.3.3.1. Brochures. . '■

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols orguidelines. ' ...

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reportis.

5.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce .any materjals produced under the
Agreement without prior writte'n approval from the Department.

5.4. Dperation-of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and. Regulations

• 5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must corhply with all laws, orders and regulations oif federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose ah order or duty
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmerital license or
permit must be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said jicense
or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and conditions of
each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing
requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during
the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply -with all rules,
orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office^ of-tiK^-iyfe

RFP-2022-OLTSS-04-COMPRO1-A01 ... Amoskeag Health Conlraclof Initials >
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^

Marshal and the local 'fire, protection agency, and must' be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

5.5. Eligibility Determinations '

5.5.1.- If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals
such eligibility determination must be made in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies and procedures.

5.5.2. Eligibility determinations must be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and must be. made and remade at such
times as are prescribed by the Department.

'• • 5.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
'  Contractor must maintain a data file on each recipient of services

hereunder, which file rnust include all information necessary to support
an eligibility determination and such other information as the

,  Department requests. The Contractor must furnish the Department with
all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the
Department may request or require.

5.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder,
as well,as individuals declared ineligible have'a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor, hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services must be permitted to fill out an
application form and that each applicant or re.rapplicant must be
informed'of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordancewith Department

•  regulations. -

6. Records " , i

'  6.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to;

6.1.1. Books, records, documents, and other electronic or physical'data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1:2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficientlyand properly reflect^all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
•to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

RFP-2022-DLTSS-04-COMPR-01-A01 ' Amoskeag Heatlrt Contractor Irutials
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■  6.1.3., Statistical, enrollment, attendance, or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services, and all

■■ invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services. ''

6.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

6.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department

■■ of the maxirnum number of units provided for in the Agreement and"^ upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder. the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except, such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreerrtent are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive' the termination of the Agreement) must terminate, provided
however, that if. upon review of the Final Expenditure Report, the Department
must disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder. the
Department must retain.the right, at its discretion, to deduct'the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

0»

RFP-2022-OLTSS-O4-COMPR-01-A01 Amo&keag HealUi Conlraclor Initials
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Exhibit C-3. Amendment#!, SPY 2024 Budget

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name; Amoskeog Health

Budget Request for:

Comprehensive Nutrition, Feeding end Swallowing Network tor Children
with Special Heatth Can,Needs

Budget Period SPY 2024 (July 1. 2023 through June 30. 2024)

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 10.00%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by.DHHS

1. Salarv&Waqes $376,193

2. Fringe Benefits S96.870

3. Consullanls > . $1,251

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2
CFR 200.1 and Aooendlx IV to 2 CFR 200.

SO

'  •

5.(a) Supplies- Educational so

5.(b) Supplies-Lab so

5.(c). Supplies - Pharmacy 'r. so

5.{d) Suppiies .• Medical so

5.(6) Supplies Office S1.500

6. Travel S8.500

7. Soft\vare SO

ft (ft) Other - Marketinq/Communications -SO

8. (b) Other- Education and Traininq $200

8. (c) Other - Other (soecifv below)

Teloohone $600

Poslaoe $350

Interonter Services S900

Other (oleese soecifv) SO
* *

9. Subredoient Contracts . $0

'

-Total Direct Costs S466.364

Total Indirect Costs S48.636

-

TOTAL $535,000

RFP-2022-01TSS-O4-COMPR-O1-A01

Contractor Initials.
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j  Exhibit C-4', Amendment #1, SPY 2025 Budget

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services .. .... . ' . ^

• .  .... . . ,vi

Contracto? Name: Amoskeag Health] . . -

... . . Budget Request fo.r;

Cdmprehensive 'Nutnliofi Feeding and Swallowing Network for Children
with Special Health Care Needs \

. Budget Period SFY.2025 (July 1.2024 through June 30. 2025)

•• Indirect Cost Rate.(lf applicable).10.00% ; ■ . ..

... . . ,j

Line liem

f

Prog'ram Cost ■ Funded by DHHS

1-. Salarv & Waoes . _ . .. .. -- "-$378,269

.  . . . . . ... .

2. Prinqe BeneHts - - -  * - . .T ": .- $9^404
. ... p ^ ^

VA . ,  .. ... '

3' Consultants 1"
.  . . ... ^

;  t •'

4. Equiprhent
indirect cost-rate cannot.be,applied to equipment cosls per
2 CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

.. .

$0

:  . ,. •  ...v.-

5.(3). Supplies- Educational .  7 •7^",: - :.'7.- " "$0

5.(b) Supplies I Lab - •  $0

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacv - -  - •• $0

5.(d)' Supplies-.Medical' . v.- "  . - '$0

5.<e) Supplies Office .  $300
.  ...

6...-Travel"' . , ... •i'' .  ..$8,500

7,- Software' • • - $0

8. (a).Olher -.Marketir>q/ Communications . ... jQ

8. (b).Other-EduMlioh ahd -TraininQ . . ,  -i: $200

8. (cl Other -Other (specify below) i* -  . .

Teleohone ' •  .... ;. •• —::— '• $600

PosiaQe. - - _  .. - $350

InlQfPfolOfServicos .". .- I-, .. ..' . .. $741

. /0/rter (oloase specifv) ,  ..... .. ■ "■ .  . 7-:• $0
,v>' '  .. . .. .. .

9. Subredplent Contracts '■< '$0
.> • • • -.. .. . . .

Tola! Direct Costs . . . -$486,364
"  7'. T". 7 .

'  . ■

■ " " „ "Tolal lndirect Costs $48,636

TOTAL $535,000

1  • . V "
T

;RFP-2022-OLTSS-04-COMPR-01-A01

Contractor Initials,

Page .1 of 1 Date

OS

'yy

5/2.6/2023



Docusign Envelope ID: EDEB80F3-A517-4FE5-8CM3F-39CD7EA6C800

DocuSign Envelope ID: 24t82DAWAFB^7B3-88Cl-C448083E1779

\

n

i

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SERVICES

D/VmON OF LONG TERM SVPFORTSAND SERVICES

i:oriA.SblblDfR< iOS PLEASANT STRECT. CONCORD. NH 03301
C«9ahih>a(r 603-2714034 1400452-33^ Ex L SQ34

Fax: 603.271-5166 TOD Accesi: 1400.73S.2964
Ocberxb 0. ScbMtx ) inrw4hlu.ph.gev

0(rcct»r

■June 10. 2021

His ^cellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council.

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to enter Into a contract with Amoskeag Health (VC#157274). Manchef^er. NH, In
the^amount of $1,070,000 for Comprehensive Nutrition.. Feeding arid Swallowing Network for
Children with Special Health Care Needs services with the option to renew for up to four (4)
additldnal years, effective July 1,2021 or upon Govemor and Couhdl approval, whichever Is later,
through June 30, 2023. 25% Federal Funds. 75% Ger>eral Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022
and 2023. upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds In the future operating
tHidget, with the autl^ority to adjust budget line items within the piice limitation and encumbrances
between staite fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
0&-95-93-930010-5191 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
^SVS, HHS: D^ELOPMENTAL SVCS DIV. DIVOF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, SPECIAL
MEDICAL SERVICES

State
Fiscal Year

' Class /
Account

Class Title Job Number Total Amount
y,

2022 074-500585
Grants for Pub Asst and

Relief
93001000 .$535,000

;n

2023 :* 074-500585
-i

Grants for Pub Asst and
Relief

93001000 $535,000

'  - Total $1,070,000

EXPLANATION
r

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to provide comprehensive community-
based nutrition^ feeding and svrallowing consultation network services to children .with special
health care ne^s. Nutrition, feeding and swallowing services include, but are not limited to the
identificatjon, training, and oversight of staff; Intake, assessment, and efigibility determination;
planning for safe feeing plans, management of feeding tubes, and aspiration management; and
consultations.

The Contractor will provide services to children and youth ages from birth to 21. with
special health care needs for whorh nutrition concerns have been identrTied, including nutritional

"JJit Dtparlmtni olHtdhh and Human Strxjint' u tofoin commu/ulici and fomilin
in providing oppoetunitia for citiMn# lo oehitM health and indtpendenct.
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consultation to help ensure their opttrnal nutrition, grovvth and development. In additiori, famiflM
and caregivere of children and youth with special health care needs will receive swallowirig
evaluation reports, consultations and follow up visits that assist them to effectively ma.nage their
children's' feeding and swallowing issues.

Approximately 1,550 and their families will be served from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2023.

The nutrition, feeding and swallowing program delivers family centered coordinated care
with highly competent nutrition providers and feedirtg and swallowing specialists. Home- t>dsed
service delivery aHows 'for observations, in the child's r^tural environment, providing a more
complete picture of the child, family and their nutrition, feeding and sv^owing concerns.
Recommendations are tailored to the unique family environment, taking Into account family
dynamics (child/slbiing, parent (guafdian)/child interactions], meal and snack schedules, and
f^ily meal culture. Recommendatior^s on reading labels can be conducted from foods within the
family's own pantry or refrigerator. Personalized tube feeding instructions and problem solving
for forrnula or blended tube feeding can be demonstrated. There is an opportunity to reinforce
recommendations for mealtime or snacks routines, easing the sense of being oven^elmed by
information, which families can experience at a regular visit to a provider's ofTice or clinic.

Additionally, the nutrition, feeding and swallowing program provides family centered
services'to children at, locations such as day care, school, physictan's offices and outpatient
therapy programs, this allows for collaboration between the family, nutrition, feeding and
swanowing providers and other providers as well as opportunity to address the child's nutrition,
feeding and swallowing concerns In other relevant locations. The nutrition, feeding and 'swallowing
program Has had the opportunity to help expand access to speciatty care services stat^de, and-
ensure th^ children with special health care needs have access to trained clinicians who provide
assessrnent ar)d service recornmendations for interventions to address feeding and swallowing
issues that negatively impact their health arid welfare.

In addttion. this network provides training and consultation to hospital radiology
departments to_ensure that their provision of swallow studtos for pediatric patients addresses the
unique needs and factors attributable to children. This is important since many providers in these
fadiities have only treeri trair»ed for provision of adult services. Other provider groups may also
access these expert clinicians Irtcfuding school personnel, early intervention providers, health
care coordinators arKJ nutritionists.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance measures;

•  90% of parents or guardians who respond to an annual Family Satisfaction Survey,
report satisfaction.'

•  100% of children with special health care needs served will have individual treatment
plans developed.

•  100% of feeding and swallowing services provided shall be billed to private Insurance
company, a managed care organization (MCQ), or New Hampshire Medicaid, as is
applicable.

•  100% of client visit records shall include documentation of progress towards outcome
measures.

•  100% of swallow studies conducted will be anal^ed and consultation will be provided
to families of children with special health care needs.

•  100% of all CYSHSN served will be provided necessary medical management and
.accommodations that allow for safe eating and drinking at home, day care, and school.
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The Department eei^ed the Contractor through a competitive bid process usir^ a
Reguest for Proposals (RPP) that was posted on the Department's website from 2/1/2021 thrc^gh ̂
3/1/2021. The Departrnent received one (l)response that was reviewed and scored by a team of
qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreernent Provisions. Section 1.
Revisions to Form'P-37, General Provisions, Subsection 1.1 of the.attached contract, the parties
have the option.'to extend the agreement for up to four <4) additional years, continent upon
satisfactory' delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and
Cour^l approval.

Should the'Governor and Council not authorize this request, riearly 950 children with
special health care needs who are in need of nutritlonat consultation will lose the services they
have in place, or not have access to new services to help assure their optimal nutrition, growth
and development. In additiph,.families and caregivers of up to 600 chifdrenend youth with special
he^h care ne^s ytiW not receive swallowing evaluations, consultations and follow up .visits that
assist them to effectively rnanage their children's' feeding and swallowing issues.

.  Vi

Area served: Statewide

Source of Furkls: 25% Federal Funds CFDA #93.994, FAIN # B09SM010035. 75%
General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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New Hampshire'Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

Office of Business-Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Scoring Sheet

Comprehensive Nutrition, Feeding and
Swallowing Network

RFP Name

RFP:2022-DLTSS-04-COMRR

RFP Number

Bidder Name

1.
Amoskeag Health

'Pass/Fail

Maximum •

■ Points

Actual

Points

350 301

350 0

350 0

>  350 0

350 0

350 0

350 •0
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FOHM NU.MBKK.PO? (vcriion 12/11/2019)

Subjcci;_Compreheiisive Nutriiion, Feeding and Swallowing Network Tor Children wiih Special Health Care
Needs (RFP-2022-DLTSS-04-COMPRi ' -

Noiicc: This agrccniciii imd al! of iis aitnchmcnis sliail hccotnc piiblic iipon submission lo Gbscnior and
F.xctniivc Council for appriwal. Any informalion thai is privnic. confulcnlial or propriciary nitisi
be ctcnrly idcmillcd lo «hc agency ami agreed lo in wi iiing prior lo signing ihc coniraci.

AGREEMK.NT '5

The Stale of New Hampshire anil the Coninicior hcivhy mutually agite as (ollows;

GKNERAL PROVISIONS

1. identification.

'I.I State Agency Name ^'

New Hanipshire Dcpanmcni of Health anil Human Service.-;

1.3 Slate Agency Addres.s

-l29'IMca.saiu'Sircci

Coneoril, NH 033(U-.3R57 ..

1.3 Contractor Name

<y

Amoskeag Health

1.4 Contractor Addres.s •>

145 Holli.s St. Manchester, NH 03101

1.5 Contractor PhoiK

Number

(603)626-9500

1.6 Account Number •

05-095-093-930010-

519100000-074-500585

1.7 Coinplciion Date

)iine .30, 202.3

I.K- Price.Liniitaiion

St.070,000 H,_ .

il.9 'Cpniracting Oflicei' for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1 .10.State Agency Telephone Number

(60.3) 271-9631
, »'

1.11 Contractor Signature
ftjr:

Dato:G/3/2021

1.12 Name am) Title of Coitiractor Signatory
Kris McCracken

President/CEO

1.13 b'iatf,/;(£^iic*y Sigtiature
'OwiCslcn*^ bt;

W, Oate:6/3/2021

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Deborah o. Scheetz

Director Division of i.ong Term Supports and

I.-15 ^App^bv.^l py the N.H. Departniont of Ailininisiration. DivisiiMi ofl'orsonncl (J'djijtlicahk'j '"• • '

Hy: Diivcmr. On:

1.16 Approval by tlic Atlorncy General (Fonn. Substance and P.xecin'ioii) (if
t  OeeuSlji^

Uy: ■ On: 6/9/2021

1.1,7 Approval by the Governor hnil l-.xceutivc Counvii (ifoppdrahlci

G&C item nunibor; G&C Meeting Date: ' -

Servic

Page 1 of4
Coniracior Iniiials
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2. SF.RVICES TO BE PERFORMED; The Stale of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency idcniifjed in block 1.1
C'Stnie"), cngngcs contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contracjor;) to pcrfonn. arid the Contractor shall perform, the
\vork or sale of goods, or both, identified ,and more particularly
describcd in the.attached EXHIBIT H which is incorporated
herein by rcrercnec ("SeK-iccs").

.3. EFFECTIVE DATfXOM PI.ETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provi.<!icn of this'Agreement to the
cpntrar)'. and subject to the approval of the Governor nnd
Executive Council of ihc State ofNow Hninp.thirc. ifapplic-thlc.
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties Iwreiindcr. .shall
become cfTcciive on the date the Govcntor and F.-xcciiiivc
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17.
unlcs-sno such approval is rcijuircd. in which ca.sc the Agreement
shall become cffcctj\x oh the 'dai'c the Agreement is signed by
the Slate Agency as shown in block 1.13 {"EITcctivc Date").
3.2 If the Cnninicior commences the Services prior to the
Efrcclive Dale, nil Services |K'rformcd by the Contrnetnr prior to
the Effective .Date shall be performed at liic sole risk of the
Contrjcior, and in the event that this Agreement docs not becojnc
•effective, the State shall have no liability to the Coniraeior.
including sviil>oiit limiiaiion. any obligation ' io pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Scrvircs pcrformcU.
Contractor must contplcic all Scr\'iccs by the Completion Date
specified in block I.7.-

t; i-.i

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF ACKEKMENT.
Notwithstanding an>^ provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the Stale hcrcundcr. inelnding;
witliout limiiatipn, the continuance of payments hcrcundcr, arc
contingent upon the nvoilabiliiy end continued oppropriaiion of
funds affected by any state or-federal legislative or executive,
action that reduces, eliminates or dthcrwisc modifies the
appropriation or bvailability of ftinding for ihis Agrccinom and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, In whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable- for any p.iynicms
iicrcundcr in excess of sucli available nppropriaicd funds. In^ llic
event of a r^uciiou or lerniitiation of appropriated funds, the
State .shall have the right fo wiihliold paymcni until .such funds
become available, if ever, and .shall ha\'c the riglii to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immcdiQiely upon
giving the Conlracior'nuliec of such reduction-or tcnuiniilion.
'Ijic State sliall not be.required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Accouui idcniilicd in block 1.6 in the
even! funds in that.Account arc reduced or uiio\-ailab!c.

5. CONTRACT'PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 Thcconiraei price, method of payment, and terms ufpaymcnt
arc identified and more particularly dc.scribcd in d-lXIIIBIT C
wliicli is incorporated herein by i-efcrence.
5.2 'i;hc payment by .the State of lljc conirnct price shali he the
only and the complete rciniburscmciii to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incuiTcd by the Coniraeior in the
performance hereof, and shall .be the only and the complete

compensation tn the Contractor for Ihc Scrx'iccs. The Stale shall
have no liability to ilic Contractor other than ihc contract price.
5.3 Tlic Slate reser\cs the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Coniraeior under ihis Agreement those
liquidated amoimis required or pcrmiiied by N.H. RSA'SO:?
ihrbiigh RSA 80:7«e or any other pruvision of law.
5.4 Noivvithsiamling any provision in tills Agrccmcni to ilie
contrary, and nolwithsianding.,unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments auihoYizcd. orociually.modc
hcrcundcr. e.vcccd the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPI.IANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND RKGUL.-vtlONS/.EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPrORTUNITY.

0.1 In connection with ilie performance of the Scrviecs, the

Contractor .shall comply with all applicable .slaluics. laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, stale, comity mr municipal
auihoriiics which impose any obligation or duty u|ion the
Cuniraeiur, including, but not limited .to, civil rights nnd.cqual
employiheiii oppoituniiy la\^^. In addition, if (his Agrccinenfis
. funded in any part by monies of the United Staics.-thc Contractor
sh.ill comply with nil federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and .statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines ns ihc
Stale or ilic United Sliiics issue to .implement lhc.so. regulations.
Tlic Contnictor sli.il) also comply with all.applieabic intellectual
properly laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Conimctor sh.ill not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment

• beeuu.scof raee.cidor. religion, erccd, ugc, sc.xvhandicap, sexual
oricuiuiion. or n.iiional origin.and will take offinnativc acuion to
prevent such iliscriminaiion.
6.3. The Conir.ietor agrees to permit the State or United Smies
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and aecouins for
tlie.purposc of ascertaining coinplioncc with all rules, regujaiions
and orders, and ilie' covcmmiS; terms and conditions of this.
Agreomcni.

7. PF-RSONNEL.

7.1 'I lie'Coniraeior sliall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform ilic Services. Tlic Contractor warrants that
nil personnel engaged in the Services shall be quulincd to
perfonn the Services, and shall be properly liccn.scd and
otherwise nuihorizcd to do .so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless oilierwise tniihorized in writing, during tlie tcmi of
this Agrcentcni. and for a period of'Six (6) months aficr the
Completion Date in block 1.7. the Contmctor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subconirncior or other person, finn or
eorpomtion with whom it i.« engaged in a combined effort to
perfonn the Scr\'iccs to hire,-any person wlm is a State employee
or ofltcial. who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or' pcrformanee of this Agreement. This
jnovision .shall survive icrminntion of ihis,Agrccnieiit. .

■ 7.3 The Coniriieting Ofncor specified in block 1.9. or his'or her
successor, shall be the State's represent oiiyc. In the event of any
dispute concerning the infcrprciation of this -".Agrcemcin, the
Contracting Orfiecr's decision shall be final for the StwtC;
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8. EVENT OF DEFAUITTREMEDIES,

8.1 Any one or more of ihc'folluwing aci's or omissions of the
Co'nimcior sliall consiiiitic an e>'cni ofdcfauli hcrcundcr C Evcnl
ofDcfoiilt"):
8.1.1 failure lo perform ilic Sciviccs satisfacloril)' or on
sci>cdulc;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hcrcundcr: niul/or
8.1.3 failure 10 pcrfonn any other covenant, icrhi or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
takc'any one. or tnorc. or all. of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor :i uTiiicn notice specifying the l:\vtti of
.Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in iltc ab.sencc pf
a greater or lesser'specification ofiimc. thirty (30) day.s from the
.date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not, timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) d.tys.nflcr giving.thc
Contractor notice of tcrmiruiiion;
8.2.2 give the Contmctor o uTiiicnitoticc .specifying the Event of
Default and suspending nil payments to be nindc .under ihi.s
"Agreement and ordering that the portion of the conimci price

t  winch would otherwise accrue to ihc Contractor (hiring the
period from the date of such notice iinlil such time as the Sintc
(ictcrmiiKS that the Contractor ha.s cured the Event of jicfauli
shall iicver b'e paid id i,hc Contractor;
8.2.3 give tiK Contractor u wriiicn notice specifying the Event of
Default and set olTagain.st .my other obligations the Stale may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State sulTcrs by rea.son of
any Evcni of Dcfnuh; and.'or
8.14 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, ircni ihc Agreement as brc.ichcd-. tcrminaic the
Agreement and pursue any of it.s icmcdics nt lawor in equity, or
both. ^
8.3. No failure by the Stoic to enforce ony provisions hereof a her
any Evcnl of Default shall be deemed a waiver of ils'riglji.s wiih
regard to thai Event of Default, or any snb.scqucni Event of
Dcfnuh, Nocxprcs.s failure to enforce any Evcniof Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each nnd

■ nil of the provisions hereof upon .any further or other Evcnt.of
Default on the part of thc-Coniractor.

9. TERMINATION.

.9.1 Nonviihstandiny paragraph K. the State may, at It.-; sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in pan, by thirty (30) dny.s written notice to the Conirocior that
the State is cxcrei.sinc its optioivio icrminu'ic the Agrecincm,
9.2 In the event of an c.arly termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion, of the Services, the

.Contractor shall, at 'the State's discrciipn, deliver to .the
Contracting OfHccr, not later than fifteen (15) days aftc'r the date
of termination, a report C'Tcrmination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the cmiiraci price turned, to
.and including the d.atc of tenninatinn. -riic form, .suhjcei matter,
'conicnt, aiHl nunibcr of copies of the Termination Report jdiall
be identical to those ofany Irinal Report described in the atiitchcd
BXHIUIT B. In nddiijon, ni the Stale's discretion, the Coniracior
shall, within 15 days of notice of early itrihinniioit, develop and

Submit 40 the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. data/access/confidentialitv/

preservation.

10.1 As iwcd in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
ittforin.aiion and ihing.s developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or,developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to', all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, iimps, charts, sound recordings', video •:
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
rcprc-wniaiions. computer prugram.s. coinpuicr printouts, notes,
letters, mcmormub. papers, and drKumcnls. till wltclhcf
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any propcn'y which lias been received fiom
the'.Staic or pnrcha.scd with fund.s provided forihai putix)sc
under this Agreement, shall be the properly of the Slate, and
shtill be returned to the State upon demand or upon icrminatiun
-oflhi.s .Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data .shall be governed by N.I I. R.SA
chapter 91-A or oilKr existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior uTittcn approv.al of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S REL.AJION TO THE STATE. In the

pci form.ance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent cuniractnr. and is neither an ugeni nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Conirnctor nor any of its
dUlccrs:, cniploycc.s. agents or members shall have oulliorily to
hiiul the State or receive any hcnefiis, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to it.s employees.

12. AS.SIGNMEN1VDELF.GATI0N/SUBC0NTKACT.S.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or .otherwise transfer any
iniercst in this Agrccnicni without the prior wTltich notice, which
.shall he provided to the State at least fifteen (IS) day.s prior to
the a.s.signmcm. and a written consent of the State. For purposes
•of' this ̂ paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "C'h.tngc of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or ii transaction or series of related irunsactions in
which a iltird party, logcihc'r with its alTiliatcs. bccomc.s the
direct or indirect owitcr of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or sim'ilar equity inicrc-sis, or combined, voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of ihc assets of the Contractor. ,
12.2 None of ihc Services shall be .subcontracted by the
Conirjictor without prior written notice and con'scni of the State.
The Slate is entitled to copies of all suhcontmcis and assignment''
ngrecinenis and shall not be bound by any provi.siohs contained

■ in a stibconiraci or an as.signmcni agreement to which it is not a
party.

1.3. INDEMNIFICATION. U"nlc.ssoihcAviscexemptedhy law,
the Coniracior shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
olViccrs and employees, from and against' any and alt claims,
liabilitie.s and costs for any personal injury or property damoges..
patent (»rcopyrighl infringomcm, or oijtcr cininis nsschcd against
the Slate, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
inft\' K/* rl-iimr-rt'irt ai'iur .rtiit rtA lhr> nrti: 'nrmay he claimed'to arise ;Oul of) Ihc acts or omij

Page -3 or4
Gontracror Initials

•  Dale



Docusign Envelope ID: EDEB80F3-A517-4FE5-800F-39CD7EA6C800

DocuSign Envelope ID:.24182DA5-2AFB-47B3-88Cl-C4'4e083E1779

OocuSJgn Envolppe ID: 093FE080-488243.6C.9372-1C280A321740

Coniractor or subcontraccors, includinfi bm not limitcil to ilic
negligence, iccklcss or inicnilonal condiiei. The Siatc .ihall not
be liable Tor ony.cosis incurred by the Conimctor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, ttoihing herein
contained shall be deemed to const iiuic a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which.lmmiiniiy is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shnll siirvi\'e the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor .shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
contimionsly maintain in force, niui .shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 eommctvial-gcncral liahility insurttncc ftgain.st nil claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amdunis of niii
less than SI.000.000 per occurrence and 52.000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 spccjal cause of io.ss coverage form covering all properly
subject to subparagraph 10.2 heroin, in an amount not less than
80% oftlrc whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in suhparagroph 14.1 iKrcin shall be
on policy forms and endorscmcnt.s approved for use in the State
ofN'ew iTainpshirc by the N.H. Deportment of In.snranee. iind
is.sncd by iivsurcrs licensed in the State of Ne w Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall Ivrnish to the Contracting OITiccr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccnificaiets) of
insiirancc for all in.su'rflnce required under this Agreement.
Contnictor shall also funtish to tltc Cdntnicting Ql'iiccr ideniificd
in block 1.9. or hi.s or her successor; ccriificatc(.s) of in.sinance
for all rcncwol(s) of insurance required umlcrtlil.s Agreement no
later :than ten (10) days prior to the cxpimiion date of each
in.suroiicc ^licy. The ecrtificaic(.s) of Insurance and any
irncwals thereof shall bs.- iiiVachcd iind arc iiicorporiucd heroin by
reference.

15. SVORKERS'COiMPENSaTION.
13.1 By .signing this asTccincnt, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and worranls that ihc Contractor is incontpliancc with or exempt
from, the rcquiremcni.s ofN.H'. RSA chapter 2XI-A ("H'oiktrs'
Coin}>vi]S(ilioii"):
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of,N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall mnint.ain. and
require any subcontractor or ossignoc lo secure ami maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person prupo.se.s to undertake pur.-.uinu to this
Agreement. 'The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Offiecr
identified in block 1:9. or his or her .succcs.<or. proof of Workers'

.Compensation in the manner described in N.M. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable" rcncwalls) thereof, whicli .shall be
aitiiched and arc incorporatod herein by rcfcrenec. 'I'lic State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compcnsntion premiums or for any other claim or hcncfii lor
.Contractor, of any siibconiracior or employee of Cumraelor.
wliicli might arise under applicable Stale of Nc\v Hampshire
Workers'. Compcnwtion laws in connection with the
perfotiuancc of iIk Services under this Agreement.

16. NO'ITCE. Aity notice by a party hereto to the other party
sh.ali be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States.
Post Office jiddrcsscd to the parlic.s at the nddrcsscs given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4. herein.

I

17. AMENDME.NT. Tliis Agreement nwy be ontcndcd. waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by tiic
parties hereto nnd only after approvai of such anKndincni,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
(he Slate ofNcw Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstaoces pursuant to State law. rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF l.AW AND FORUiM. This Agreement shall

be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with ihc
laws of ilK State i)f New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panics andthcir respcciivc successors
and jLSsigii.s. The vVording used in tliis Agrccnteni is iIk wording
chosen by the parties to c.xprcss their mutual intent, and no rule
of consiriictidn siiali be applied against or in favor of any party.
.Any nciiuiis arising out of this Agreement shall be, brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Coun which shoil have
cxeliisi^'Cjuri.sdieiion ihcivof.

19. CONFLICTING TERALS. In the event of a connict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified In EXHIBIT
,A) and/or aiiachmcui.s and amcndmcnt. thcrcof.'thc terms of the
P-37 (IIS modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed io confer any such hcncfii.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the AgrccnKtu arc
for lofcrcucc puiposcs o'nly. nnd the words comnined therein
shall iit no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
inierprciarion. consiniction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22; SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Addiiiotwl or nxidifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any ofthc provisions of this
Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to he
conirary to any state or federal low. the rcnutining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full fbrec and cflcct.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This AgVccmcnl, which may be
c.vecuied in a number of counterparts, eacl» of which shall be
deemed on original, cousiiiuics lite entire agreement and
uiulerslanding between the panics, and supersedes iill prior
ayrcemcnts nnd understandings with respect lo the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Comprehensive Nutrition,- Feeding and Swallowing Network for Children with
Special Health care Needs

EXHIBIT A :,

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Prpvisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years
.from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the

'' Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12. Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph'12.3 as follows: ■

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
•  Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor

compliance with those conditions. .The Contractor shall have written
.  ' agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
•  and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's

'performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance' on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement arfd notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

\ ■
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Comprehensive Nutrition, Feeding and Swallowing fsletwork for Children with
Special Health.Care Needs

EXHIBIT B K

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The.Contractor shall provide services in this Agreem'ent to children and youth
from birth to age twenty-one (21) with special medical needs as defined in RSA
132-13 II, and their families, whose medical complexity requires highly
specialized consultation and treatment from pediatric dieticians and
;feeding/swallowjng providers.

1.2. TheContractor shall ensure services are available statewide.

1.3. The .Contractor shall ensure that delivery of services complies with a sjate of
emergency declaration, including adjustments for delivery of services' during

j  the current pandemic state of emergency, with approval from the Department.

1.4. For the purposes of Jthis Agreement, all references to days shall mean business
days.

1.5. The Contractor shall provide all service.s.in accordance with New Hargpshire
Admjnistratiye Rule He-M 500 Developmental Services. Part 520,, Children's
Special Medical Services, which Includes requirements for:

.1.5.1. Program eligibility.

1.5.2. Services provided.

1.5.3. Financial eligibility.

1.5.4. Payment for health-related services.

1;5.5, Limitation of services.

1.5.6. Appeals,

1.5.7. Waivers.

-.v; 1.6. The Contractor shall ensure eligibility determinations are completed prior to the
* provision of services. ;•

1.7. The ■ Contractor shall ensure the intake process is conducted using the
comprehensive Nutrition, Feeding and Swallowing Network (NFSN) Screening

;  Tool, and:

.•;! 1.7.1. Assessment visits are conducted at a time and place of the family's
choice: and

i  ■ 1.7.2. Referrals are processed from agencies, which shali lnclude, but are
not limited to:

1.7.2.1, Families.

1.7.2.2. Community agencies. >;

;  1.7.2.3. Primary or specialty care medical providers.
''■■■ ^ t/" ,
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"1.10.2. Nutrition, Feeding and Swallowiog Network's Program Mana^px^nd
Clinical Supervisor that comp.rise the NFSN develop and.:riia^lain
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'• New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services vv
Comprehensive Nutrition, Feeding and Swallowing Network for Children with >.
Special Health Care Needs

EXHIBITS ■

1.7,2.4. Family Centered Early .Supports and Services.' ^ ,y5
1.7'2.5. Health Care Coordinators. ,

1.7.2.6. Partners in Health. "

1.7.2.7. Schools and daycares. t
'  • . :tf

1.7.2.8. United States Department of Agricolture, Food and p
f^ulrilion Program. -Special Supplemental Nutrition
Program for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC). ^

1.8. TheContractor, shall provide home or comrhuriily-based assessments.
-  intervention recommendations, and ongoing monitoring of the growth and ■{'

" health status of children and youth accepted for services by the comprehensive
Nutrition/Feeding and Swallowing Network (NFSN) and'ttie B.yreau for Family

^  Centered Services (BFCS), including, but not limited to:
.  1.8,1; Providing specialized assistance from:

1.8.1.1. Pediatric dietitians:
•, j

1.8.1.2. Speech and language pathologists; and •
1.8.1.3. Occupational therapists. ^

,1.8.2. . Implerhenting and monitoring on-going strategies for:
1.8.2.1. ■ Feeding skill development;

'  . . 1.8.2.2. Swallow safety;

1'.8.2.3. Improving and monitoring of growth and nutrition status.
~  and c

-  1.8.2.4. Securing access to and financing for-recornrnended:

1.8.2.4.1. Supplies;'

1.8.2.4.'2. Medical equipment;

*. ^ ■ 1.8.2.4.3. TherapeutiC'lools; and --v
1.8.2.4.4. Formula,

1.9. The Cpntractdr shall oversee the reporting process and review notes from the
:  Feeding and Swallowing Specialists for completeness and accuracy.

1.10. The Contractor shall ensure:

V  1.10.1. Pediatric Dietitians, and Feeding and Swallowing Specialists (FSS)
'  that comprise the NFSN are available for consultation and technical

assistance to all Department and community-based coordinators and
clinic coordinators.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Comprehensive Nutrition, Feeding and Swallowing Network for Children with
Special Health Care Needs

EXHIBIT B

educational material, policies and procedures, training material, ah
evaluation plan, and collaborate with other agencies as needed.

1.10.3. The Program Manager shall provide ■ clinical guidance and
competency development to FSS .and oversee Feeding and
Swallowing billing and reimbursement. -

1.10.4. .The Program Manager shall provide education and consultation at
the professional training level, to institutions, and to community
service providers

1.10;5. FSS receive support and training including, but not limited to:

'  ■ 1.10.5.1. On-the-job competency training, including no less than
two (2) education and training sessions of no.-less than
eight (8) hours each, which may include, but is not limited
mandatory and clinical competency based training.

1.10.5.2. Support wilh scheduling, designing, analyzing, and
documenting swallow study reports.

1.10.5.3. On-going support to problem-solve difficult clinical
situations.

•  1.10.5.4. Assistance_with reviews and edits-of provider documents.

1.10.6., Intake processes include: ■'
1.10.6.1. Entering data;

1.10.6.2. Checking the health insurance status of applicants;
'  ' * 1.10.6.3,. Collecting key Information from the referral source;

'k • * •

1.10.6.4. Assigning clinical caseloads by geographical region, in
alignment with Family Centered .Early Supports and

■  , Services regions; and

1.10.6.5. Encouraging family participation in the evaluation pVahv
'  1.10.7.' Dieticians and FSS associated with the NFSN attend NFSN Program

' and Training Meetings.

1.10.8. Referrals are made to other 8FCS and community services as
•appropriate including, but not limited to:

T.10.8.1. Health Care Coordination.

'  1.10.(8.2. Partners in Health.

1.10.8.3. Child Development Clinic.
1.10.8.4. New Hampshire Family Voices.

1.10.8.5. Complex Care Clinic and Consultation. .^ds

I
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'1.10.8.6. FarhB^Cehlefed Early Supports and Services.-

I.TO.8.7. Area Agency for Developmental Services. -

1.10.8.8. Hospitals.

1.10.9. The Clinical Supervisor or Program Manager oversees the reporting
process and reviews notes from the Dietitians,- including, but not
limited to, reviewing nutrition reports prepared usingThe Nutrition
Care Process format.

1.11. The ContTactor shall collaborate with the Department and community-based
agencies to:

1.11.1. ' Ensure coordination of care:

1.11.2. Facilitate interagency referrals:

1.11.3. Coordinate joint training and planning for shared clients;

;  1.11.4. Develop Individual Family Service Plans (IFSP);

1.11.5. Develop Safe Eating Plans (SEP); and ■

•  1.11.6. Coordinate with Family Centered Early Support" and Services
.  (FCESS).

1.12. The Contractor shall ensure collaboration with community-based agencies that
include, but are not limited to:

' "i.12.1. " Primary care and specialty care physicians.
1.12.2. Schools. .

1.12.3. Family Centered Early Supports and Services (FCESS) programs.

'  1.12.4. Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center.

1.12.5. Elliot Hospital.

'  .. 1.12.6./ Southern NewiHampshire Medical Center Neo-Natal lnt'ensive Care
'Unit.

1.12.7. Special Care Nursery at Concord Hospital.

1.12.8. Special Care Nursery at Wentworth-Dpuglas Hospital.

T12.9. Elliot Pediatrjc Specialties.
.  I- ' .

1.12.10. Children's Hospital at Dartmouth, Department of Gaslroenterology.

1.12.11. Massachusetts General Hospital/Massachusetts Eye & Ear Infirmary
(MEEI) Aerodigestive Clinic.

>  1.12.12.' Plymouth Pediatric Group.

T12.13. Laconia Family Resource Center.
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1.12.14. Androscoggin Valley Hospital. , |

1.12.15. Gorham Learning Center.

1.12.16. 'WIG to: -

1.12.16.1. Provide information about the benefits of breastfeeding; c;-

1.12.16.2. Recommend formula and specialty formula as
appropriate; and

1.12.16.3. Share nutrition reports with WIG providers, with,approval
from the child's family. '•}

1.12.17. Equipment vendors to: |
1.12.17.1. Facilitate formula changes;, including increases or

decreases in volurhe; and y
'

1.12.17.2. Secure t,ube feeding supplies, as needed by families.

1.12.18. Home-care nursing providers to:
'f

1.12.18.1. Develop SEPs; and
•"I

1.12.18.2. Coordinate in-home services. •:

1.12.19. New Hampshire Farnily Voices (NHFV). ' S'

1.1Z20. Head'Start programs.

1.12.21. Other providers as needed to identify and locate services for children
determined to be ineligible for GNFSN services. ., iTj

1.13. The Contractor shalj maintain office space and provide services at locations j
throughout the State, which shall include, but are not limited to:

1.13.1. Family Resource Centers.

1.13.2. "Hospitals. ^

1.13.3. Area Agencies. ■ %

1.13.4. Community-Health Centers.

1.14. The Contractor shall provide competency training in. pediatric feeding and !
swallowing .disorders to families and community-based personnel serving ',!
children, including but not limited to Part C Early Intervention programs,
childcare providers, and school-based personnel.

1.15. The Contractor shall review and propose alternative means of service provision ./J
should there be an ;unmet need identified for a specific population of CSHCN. ^

1.16. The Contractor ensure attendance at meetings and activities as assigned by '!
the BFCS Administrator or designee.

1.17r The Contractor shall conduct'an annual Family Satisfaction Surv^'Sjid
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,  provide the-results to the Department.

1.18. The Contractor shall-put^lish a newsletter no less than twice each year, and
distribute it in electronic or printed form to community partners and other
organizations, with approval from the [Department.

1.19; The Contractor shall maintain the following staff::

1.19.1. One (l)-Director (.20 PTE);

1.1Q.2. One (1) Accountant {.0875 FTE);

1.19.3. One (1) Program Support (.70 FTE):

1.19.4. One d) Program Bille.r (.375 PTE); ■

1.19.5. . One (1) Clinical-(NUtrition) Supervisor (.60 FTE);

>  1.19.6. One (1) Registered Dietitian (1 PTE); and

1.19.7. One (1) Intake and Referral (Coordinator) Specialist (.75 FTE).

1.20. The Cori,tractor shall adhere to the following staffing requirements:

1.20.1. The Department must be notified in writing within one (1) week of
hire of when a new Pediatric Dietitian or FSSJs hired to work in'the

program. A resurne of" the employee must accompany this
notification:

1.20.2. In the event of a vacancy in any of the staff positions..the Contractor
shall immediately recruit for the position. -

1.20.3. The Contractor shall/make a. request in writing to the Departn^ent
.before hiring new program personnel that do,not meet the required

;; ' stafif'qualifications, A waiver may be granted based onlhe needs of
the program and/or the individual's experience and education.'

.  1.20.4. AH Dietitians must obtain, maintain, and,-provide dpcumentation of a
State of New Hampshire Dietetic license.

1.20.5. FSS,shall have the appropriate New Hampshire iicensure consistent
with their clinical,preparation.

1..20.6. All health professionals must obtain and maintairi a National Provider
Identification (NPI) number and credentiaiing with the Council for

. Affordable Quality Healthcare (CAQH). .

1.20.7. Dietitians must have a. Bachelor's degree in nutrition science, foods
and nutrition, or home economics, or a Master's degree in nutrition^
science, nutrition education or public health nutrition, and current
Registered Dietitian status in accordance with the Commission on
.Dietetic Registration of the American Dietetic Association.
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1.20,8. AII DIetitian providers and Feeding and Swallowing Specialists must
obtain, maintain, and provide documentation of professional liability
insurance. .

.i;: ' ' 1.20.9. Feeding and Swallowing Specialists must have a Bachelor's degree
in a health-related field, or a Master's degree in speech and language
therapy or occupational therapy.

1.20,10. Feeding and Swallowing Specialists must have knowledge and
■  understanding of anatomy and physiology of the normal swallowing

• reflex, and how this automatic activity may be impaired or diminished
in children with disabilities, which includes:

1.20; 10.1. Knowledge of normal growth and development:

1.20.10.2. Knowledge of federal and slate legislation regarding
service provision to children with disabilities;

1.20.10.3. Knowledge of the education and consultative processes;

1.20.10.4. Ability to organize work, analyze problems and
recommend/implement solutions; and

120.10.5. Abllily to establish and maintain cooperative'working
relationships with medical, educational and allied health
service providers.

1:20.11. The Contractor shall, recruit for and maintain a workforce that is
ccilturajly, linguistically, racially, and ethnically diverse.

1.20.12. Prior to making an offer of employment or for volunteer work, the
Contractor shall, after obtaining-signed and notarized authorization
from the person or persons for whom Information is being sought:

1.20.12.1. Oblain at least two (2) references for the person;
1.20.12.2. Submit the person's ,name for review against the Bureau

of Elderly -and Adult Services (BEAS) slate registry
■" maintained pursuant to RSA 161-F:49;

1.20.12.3. Submit the person's name for review against the Division
for Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) slate registry
maintained pursuant to RSA 170-G:8-c;

1.26.12.4. Complete a criminal records check to ensure that the
person has no histoiy of:

1.20.12.4.1. Felony conviction; or

■'1.20.12.4.2. Any misdemeanor convictipn Involving:

120.12.4.2.1. Physical or sexual assault;

'1.20.12.4.2,2. Violence;
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1.20.12.4.2.3. Exploitation;

1.20.12.4.2.4. Child pornography;

1.20.12.4.2.5. Threatening or reckless conduct;

1.20.12.4.2.6. Theft;

^  ; 1.20.12.4.2.7. Driving under the influence of drugs or
alcohol; or

RFP-2022rDLTSS-04-COMPR Amoskeog Hoallh Controclof Inilials^^''

,, 1.20.12.4.-2.8, Any other conduct that represents
evidence 'Of behavior that could ^

•  ■ endanger the well-being of a
consumer; and ;

i";

1.20.12.5. Complete a motor vehicles record check to ensure that
the person has a valid driver's license.

.  1.20.13. Unless the Contractor requests and obtains a waiver from the
Department, it will not hire-any individual or approve any individual

•  5' to act as a volunteer if: '■

1.20.13.'1. The individual's name is on the BEAS or DCYF state
•registry; or ' ' - " %

1..20.13.2. The. individual has a record of a felony conviction. . j.

1.21. The Contractor shall coordinate a system integrating public and private funding ..
to sustain the availability .of specialized feeding and swallowing services to -is
CYSHCN throughout the State which'includes. but is not lirniled to:
1.21.1. Developing and maintaining relationships with third-party insurance

payers and public health funders. ■
*  'i

1.21.2. Developing a system to negotiate and secure reimbursements :for
_  feeding and swallowing services, and serve as'lhe paymaster for the

established network of community-based providers' fee-for-service'
and training activities, that must include, but Is not limited to:

1.21.2.1. Ensuring each dietician, occupational therapist, and
■  ̂ speech language pathology provider maintains .!

credential with .every insurance carrier that will provide a
credential.

1.21.2.2. Billing insurance payers for nutrition services-through the.
Contractor's billing department, and: "/

1.21.2.2.1. Check'ing each clairn for accuracy;
1.21.2.2.2. Adding.additional modifiers when needed; * 'i
1.21.2.2.3. Following up with.and reaching final resolution

for each claim that is:

B-1.0 ' Pago got 14 Dale



;;; 1.21.2.5.1. Obtaining medical orders and insurance a
■■ prior authorization no less; than three (3) days
.  in advance: •

1.21.2.5.2. Completing-and submitting insurance clams
■■ and billing data each week;"

1.21.2.5.3. Investigating each unpaid claim; and

1.21.2.5.4. Providing additional inforrnation as requested
■  by the insurance payer.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
corfipliance wiih the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health"
Information (Priy.acy Rule) {45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under-the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, arid in
accordance vyith the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage'all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all .Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit an annual report using the D.epartment'.s template,
which includes, but is not limited .to:

.3.1.1. Quality ..assurance activities, including', but.not'limited to:
OS

Jy""
I
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1..21.2.2.4. Unpaid;

.  1.21.2.2.5. Partially paid; or

'  1.2.1.2.2.6. Not acknowledged as received.

1.21.2.3. Ensuring requests for prior authorization for services are
processed and submitted as necessary; , i-

1.21.2.4. Obtaining approval in advance 'for additional dietary " ,'f
services when required;

. • 1.21;2.5.. Submitting requests for rehabilitation services, including,
but not limited to, services provide by feeding and
swallowing network providers no later than two (2) weeks r:'
prior to the s.tail of each month for services "scheduled in ^
the coming month; and v; - ■.
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3.1.1.1. A summary of. Family Satisfaction Survey results that v
includes:

3.1.1.1'.1. Percentage of families rating the Contractor's ■
;•!, expertise as extremely helpful or very helpful ;

.  3.1.1.1.2. Percentage of families rating the Conlraclpr's '-Y
recommendations as extremely helpful or very . :!/
helpful:

3.1.1.1.3. Percentage of families rating the Contractor's ^
ability to collaborate with other providers as It'j

■  very good or extremely good; and

3.1.1.1.4. Percentage of. families indicating it is very n
.V important or extremely important to be seen at ^

home. i

3.1.2. Progress made and efforts undertaken to meet goals and objectives
for each activity or service funded in quantitative terms, including ■!,

■  statistical measures for evaluating successful outcomes.

3.1.3: Overall progress toward program goals and supporting statistical f
information' including; but not limited to: i,

3.1.3.1. A status report.or final results from the FSN OutcoiTie .
Study; and

3.-1.3.2. A status report or final results from the FSN Outcome •'
Study •' i

■  3.1.4-. Program effectiveness, including identified program gaps and a plan ,,
!lo address-them. *•.>.•;

!

3.1.5. Future plans or goals, including a narrative report on status of design
changes to program model.

3.1.6. Third Party reimbursement funding improvement strategies.
3.1.7. Emerging issues. .'i:

'c
3.2. The Contractor shall ensure data is entered, documents uploaded, and case ^

records are maintained in the Department Data System within five (5) business ij.
da^s of receiving the data which shall include, but not be limited to: ^

•''i
3.2.1. The demographic characteristics of'each client receiving services,

and insurance status. v'

3.2^.2. Enrollment and discharge information.
3.2.3, Encounter and progress notes. ■ . '
3.2.4. Any problems, obstacles, or hindrances with a plan to address them.
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3.2.5. Screening efforts, results, and referrals for further assess.ment or
services.

3.2.6. Documents relevant to,each case, including, but not limited to:

3.2.6.1. Applications.

3.2.6.2. Approval, denial and/or discharge letters (when
applicable).

.3.2.6.3. Medical documentation used for eligibility determination.

3.2.6.4. Referralforms.

3.2.6.5. Releases.

3.2.6.6. NFS Reports -that include, but are not limited to
treatment/care plans.

3.2;6.7. Waiver requests and approvals (if applicable).

3.2.7. The Department may request additional inforrhation at any time
during the contract period. _ ^

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Department will monitor performance of the Contractor by reviewing the
.  • following annually:

4.1.1. Ninety percent (90%) of CSHCN enrolled In NFSN have evidence of
an individual, treatment/care plan and/or progress made towards
goals in their electronic case record upon annual review by the
Department.

4.1.2. Eighty-five percent (85%) of CSHCN or their family or 'guardian,
responding to a Department approved survey, will indicate
satisfaction with services provided.

4.1.3. A minimum of seven hundred (700) nutrition visits by licensed
dietician(s) provided per year. ...

4.1.4. A network of-a minimum of six (6) feeding and swallowing specialists
will, visit clients in each of the ten (10) NH counties per year.

4.1.5. A minimum of one thousand one hundred (.1,100) visits will be
conducted by feeding and swallowing providers per year.

4.1.6. A minimum of one hundred (100) swallow studies that include
analysis and relevant follow-up consultation to families of CSHCN
will be provided annually.

4.1.7. One.hundred^percent (100%) of feeding and swallowing encounters
by a feeding and swajlowing professional will be billed to a |5rivate

&RFP-2022-DLTSS-04-COMPR Amoskoag Hoallh ConUaclor InillaJs
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insurance company, a managed care organization (MCO). or to.NH '
:  Medicaid. as is applicable

4.2. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.3. The Contractor may be required to. provide other key data and metrics to the
Department. Including client-level demographic, performance, and service

y  data. . .. " '

4.4. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and/share data with the
'  Department in a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1.. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes '
'

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state" or federal i;I
■  ■ legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services

described herein, the State has the right to rriodify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement, so as to
achieve compliance therewith. ■ ^

.  5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Programs and Services • ^

.-.V .5.2.1.- The Contractor shall submit, within ten (.10) days of the Agreement ■ '
. Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access 3
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure ;f-
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with > i'
limited English proficiency: Individuals who are deaf or have hearing *
loss; Individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who ^
have speech challenges. ;;

5.3.. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
-■ materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the

services of (he Agreement shall include the following statement. "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed urider an
Contract with the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided'in part by the State of New •'
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services." . ' v

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased.under the Agreement shall have ■;
prior approval from the Department before printing, production, . %.
distribulion or use. . .—d9..

'' . i
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5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and, all
priginal materials produced, including, but not limited to: .

5.3.3.'1. Brochures. .. i

5.3.3.2. Resource directories. ^
5.3.3.3. Protocols Of guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters. ^

5.3.15. Reports. „ '

•  ' 5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under
the Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

"5'4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5,4.1, In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of ariy Public

.Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duly upon the contractor with respect to the operation of-the facility
or-the provision of the services at such facility. If any governrnenlal
license or permit shali.be required forthe operation of the said facility
or the performance of the.-said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply yvllh the terms and

■  conditions of each such license or permit. In connection .with the,
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities shall
com'ply^with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the
State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency,
and shall, be in conformance with local building and zoning codes,
by-laws and regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and .other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecling all costs and other expenses incurred by
the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and aji income
received or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
r.ecords. and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, -vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,

— OS .

fr.'
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Special Health Care Needs

EXHIBITS

" valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and
other records requested or required by the Department.

6.1.3. .Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient ■* " 7
of services, which records shall,include all records of application and ;•
eligibility {including all forms required to determine eligibility for each .
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all ^

I  invoices submitted to the Deparimerit to obtain payment for such •
.services. • .7' r

6.1.4. Medical records on each patiehl/recipient of services, ' *' \l
6.2. .During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereuhder, the jf

Department, the Unile'd States Department of Health and Human Services, and v . ^
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and v;

.  records- maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit, ■
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department .7
of (he maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and'upon.
payment of the price limitation hereunder. the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obllga.tions as. by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided |
however, that" if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the %
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor. ^
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EXHIBIT C
,  Payment Terms

1 This Agreement is funded by:

1.1.25%, Federal,funds from the Title V Maternal Child Health Block GrantTas
awarded on' October 26, 2020. by the Health Resources and Services
Administration, CFOA #93.994, FAIN #B09SM010035 and FAIN
#80440148. ' -

1.2. 75% General funds. •

2.. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330. ^

2.2. The Department has identified this Agreement as NON-R&D, in
'  accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

2.3. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2
CFR §200.414. : -

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimburserhent basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the-fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1. Budget through Exhibit C-
2, Budget.

4. ■' The Contractor shall submit an invoice.in a form satisfactory to,the Department
by the fifteenth (15lh) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized .expenses incurred in the. prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to bfcs@dhhs.nh:gov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Medical Services Technician. ^ • •
f  ■' Department of Health and Human Services

Bureau for Family Centered Services, Thayer Building
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301 ?

6. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of
receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice and if
sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions
Form'Number P-37 of this Agreement-

7. The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Date. .'v
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New Hampshire Department of Health'and Human Services
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Special Health Care Needs

EXHIBIT C ..
8. The Contractor must.provide the services in Exhibit B. Scope of Services, in

compliance with funding" requirements.

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services. . , j •*

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may.be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event

'  of non-compliance with any Federal or State, law, rule or. regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said sen/ices or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement. * . ■

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made .by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified. ^ .

12. Audits

12.1. The Gohfracldr is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist: :•

'12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor-expended S750,000 or .more in
federal funds received as a subrecipienfpursuant to 2 CFR Part
200,-during the most recently completed fiscal year.

l'2.1."2. Condition B - The Contractor js subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28,., Ili-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $,1,000,000 or'more.

12..1.3. Condition C - The Contractor js a public cornpany and required
"  by Security and Exchange. Commission (SEC) regulations' to

submit^an annual financial audit.

12.-2. Jf Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit,
performed by an independent Cerlified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 Bays after the,close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200. Subparl F of the. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, a'hd Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

12.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the" Contractor shall submit an
annual 'financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contra'ctor's fiscal year. '

s  'Ti
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-r EXHIBIT C
12.4. In addition to. and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the

Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be hejd liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has- been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of.such an exception.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG.PREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor idenlified In Section 1.3 of ihe General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1980 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V,. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 el seq.), and further agrees to have the Cpnlraclor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisloris execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES-CONTRACTORS ' '
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US.DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE -CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by thq^regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-f^ree
Worl^placG Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle 0: 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq;). TheiJanuary 31.
1989 regulations were amended.and pul)lishcd as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-gfanlees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of Ihe
regulation provides thai a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a Slate
may eiecl to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year'in lieu of ce'riificales for
ea^ grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of Uie certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarmenl. Contractors using this form should
'send il to;.:

Commissioner ' '

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street, •
Concord. NH 03301-6505 r;.

1. The grantee certifies that "it will or .will continue lo provide a daig-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a staiement notifying employees that the unlav/ful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance Is prohibited in the grantee's
'' workplace arxJ specifying the aclions that will be taken against employees for violation of such'

prohibition: • ,
1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees abou'l

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in ihe workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace:
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs: and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace:
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged In the performance of the grant be

given a copy of Ihe statement required by paragraph (a):
1.4.' Notifying the employee in the slalemcnt required by paragraph (a) lhal. as a condition of. V

employmenl under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.-2.' Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug .

statute occurring in the workplace no laler than five calendar days after such
conviction:

■ 1.5., Notifying the agency in writing, v/llhin ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual nolicoof such convlclion.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position tilie, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federty^agehcy

,1.^"
ExIiiUlt 0 - Ceftilicfltion tcflrtrding Dn'ig Ffoe Vcndo* Iniliflb-;

Wcvkpince Requitwnenis ' 6/3/2021
CuowriS'iio/tj - Pagolcrf? Polo
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a ceniral point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shaii include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant:

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph i.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1,6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

"  'terrhlnalion, consislerit with the requirements of the Rehabillialion Act of 1973, as
amer)ded;or

1..6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfaclorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. Slate, or local Health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintatn a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3. 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in Ihe space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant. "'

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

6/3/202.1

Date

~D«<uSloii«0 b]r:

Namef^^^^^'^cCrackcn
President/CEO

CUOHrSllO?!)

ExNbil D - CertilicaUon rvgafding Onig Frco
VVofkolace Requireincftis ^

PsflO 2 ol 2

Vendor initials

—09

D.tto
6/3/2021
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New Hampshire Departmenl^of Health and Human Services,
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

w. ' The Vendor identified in Seclion 1.3 of llie General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor s representative, as identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRAQTORS

Programs (indicate appTlcable program covered):'
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title'IV:D '
•'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant urxJer Title VI :
'Child Care Oevelopment Block Gram under Title IV '

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, thai;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or vviil be paid by or on behalf of Ihe undersigned, to
any person for influencing or atlempHng lo influence an officer or employee of any agency; a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of-a Mernber of Congress in
connection with Ihe awarding ol an/ Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
rnodificalipn of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific menllon
sub-grantee or sub-contracior).

2. 'If.any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid^or will be paid lo any person for
influencing.or allempling tp influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an o.fficer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection,with this
Federal contracl.,grant, loan, or cooperalive agreemenl (and,by specific meniion sub-grantee or sub-
conlracior), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance vsnth its insjructions. attached atid identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of Ihis certification be included in"lhe award
■document for sub-awards al all Hers (including subconlracls, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperalive agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fad upon which,reliance was placed when this transaction
v/as made or entered into. Submission ol this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Seclion 1352. Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who falls to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty 61 not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

,• DetultQMd by: v.
•  * p. . I'.L.-,../ V- ■ •

6/3/2021

Diii
.President/CEO

M'
I

E*J»ibU E - Cortmcation Regafding LoUbytny Vendor Intligis ,
'  .. 6/3/2021

co wirtS/MOJU Pago > Ol I * Doio
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DE8ARMENT, SUSPENSION

-AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Conlraclor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 2
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 125'J9 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, ^
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Mailers^, and further agrees to have the Contractor s - "
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRiJgTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION %
1. By signing and submilling ihis proposal (conlract). the prospective- primary participant is providing the .

certification sel out below. ,!
\

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification" required below wilt not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. ,lf necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an j
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connecllon .with the NH.Oeparlmeht of Health and Human Services'.(DHHS) ;;
determination whether to.enlerjnlo this iransaclion. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certincation or an explanation shall disqualify such person frcm.participalion in -
this transaction.

■  I ■ . .
•3. The certification in this clause is a nialerial representation of fact upon which reliance-was placed

when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later delenmined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4., The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that Us certification wa's erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason qf.changed '
circumstances. .• >5

5. The terms 'covered transaction,* "debarred." 'suspended," 'ineligible.' "lower tier covered
transaction.' •participanl," "person." 'primary covered transaction," '■principal." 'proposal.'iand \ j'(
'voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and "•
Coverage sections of the rujes'implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees.by submilling Ihis proposal (contract) thai, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is'debarred. suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded ol
from participalion In this covered transaction, unless authorized by.OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submilling this proposal that it will include the h-
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Losver Tier CoveredTransactions." provided by DHHS. without modification, in ail lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered iransaclions. '^!

0. A participant in a covered Iransaclion may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a v-
tower tier covered Iransaclion that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded -i-
from the covered Iransaclion. unless it knows thai the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the methc^ and frequency by .which it determines the eligibilily of its principals. Each I
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocuremenl List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contairied In the foregoing shall be construed to require.establishment of a system of,records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge

'->■ - Exhibil F - Certir««tion_Re9arding Debarment. Suspension Conlrador fnilials^
And Other ResponjiWity Mailers '6/3/2021'
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infqrmatioh of a parlicipant is not required to exceed that which Is normally possessed by a prudent %
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

.'v;.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who Is

'  -suspended, debarred, irieliglble, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction, In / . '
addition to other remedies available to (he Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS ' .
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its '• '

.principals: - • ' v
. 11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment, declared Ineligible, or >

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; '
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposql.(contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against Ihem for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in (■'
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or pierforming a public (Federal, State or local)
transacbon or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust V;
slaluies or commission of embezzlerneni, theft, forgery.- bribery, falsification or destruction of -V

,  records, making false statements, or receivnng stolen property; .. • fl:
11.3. are hot presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governrtiental entity

.  " (Federal, State or local) wilh commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (IXh)
.  of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a.three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, Stale or local) terminated for cause or default f:

12. Wfiere the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this (}.
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanationlo this proposal (contract). .

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS ,
■  13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as ' . v

defined in 45 CFR Part.76, certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief that it and its prindpals;
13.1. are not.presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment, declared ineligible, or --i

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. '
13.2. N^ere the prospective tower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, sucti

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).
•  ' :c:

'14. The prospective lower lier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that It wilt
indude this clause entitled Xertificaiion Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibility, and a
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in all lower'tier covered ;1:
transactions arid in all solidtations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name;

■^0«<uilciHO »y:
1 . . ,

V- i/'6/3/2021 , ;

Date ?^M§'Wccracken

Presiden.t/CEO

— OS
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Cohtractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the" Contractor s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

.certification; .

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrlmination requirements, whfch may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or In
the delivery of.services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan:

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 tJ.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding underjhis
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of.services or
benefits, on the.basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civi] Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients:of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits .recipients of Federal financial
assisia'nce from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any prograrri or activity;

- the Amehcans with Disabilities Act of 1990.(42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in'employment. State'and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685^86), v/hich prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted,education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 61,06-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
ernpldymeht discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R, p'l. 42
(ij.S. Department of Justice Regulations Nondiscrlmination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and comrhuniiy
organizations); Executive Order'No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
"Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancerhent of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects ernployees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificale set out below is a material representation of facl upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification.shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or governrrient wide suspension or
debarment.

/  OS

I  .ExhlbH G
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In (he event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discriminatior) after"a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of IheTinding (o the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health'and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman. •'

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provlsioris agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, lb execute the following
certification: •

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above. .

Conlraclor Name:

.6/3/2021

Date l^me.'Kris Mccracken

Title:
President/C£0

EKhibii G

.  ' Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as.lhe Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an enii'ty and used routinely or regularjy for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are.funded by Federal programs either
directly or through Stale or local governments, .by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatienl drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition o7 a civil monetary penalty of up to
SlOOb per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on ihd^responsible entity.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as idenlified'in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
"with all applicable provisions of Public Law 1.03-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.-

6/3/2021

Contractor Name:

—DocwSiQitd by;

.V>-

Date N ame: ̂  n 4cC r a c k e n
Title: President/CEO

A'.

CUrOHHSn 14713
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABIUTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CPR Parts 160 and 164-applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate* shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors'and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Deflnilions. - _

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of'lltle 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such lerrh in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code "
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meariing given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations. •

d. "Designated Record Set'shai) have the sanie meaning as the term "designated record set' '
in 45 CFR Section 1,64.501.

•e. "Data AQoreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Ooeraibns" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR-Seclion 164:501.

9- "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for. Economic and Clinical Health
Act.'TitleXIII, Subtitle b. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h/ "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portabiiity and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and'the Standards,for Privacy and Security of Iridividually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Paris 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "jndividuar shall have the same meaning as the lerrn "Individual' in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected heallh
.inforrnalion" in 45 CFR-Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receiv^l^;i
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. - i

3/2014 Exhibli I Conuaciot rniiiafsN
Heatih Insurance Podabiliiy Act
Business Associate Agreement 6/3/2021
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•i-j

y.y

1. "Required bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the $ecretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
'his/her designee. %

n. "Securitv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto. f

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Informallon that Is not.
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable. r
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards '■
institute. .. f:

•' i-.
p. other Definitions • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning •;

established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160. 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the t
HITECH
Act. ;

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Informatloh.

a. Business 'Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protecled'Heailh
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all

"  its-directors,.officers, employees and agents, shall nol use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI; r;
I. Fpr lhe proper management and administration of the Busirless Assodale;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered ' "

Entity. ;;;

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI'to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially arid
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
-disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business • v
Associate, in accordance 'with the HIPAA Privacy. Securily. and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such brea.ch.

d. The Business Associate shall nol, unless such disclosure is reasonably hecessary to '
provide services under Exhibil.A of the Agreement, disclose any P.Hi in response to a
request for disclosure oh the basis thai it is required by law, without first notifying V;
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has, an opportunity to object to the d.i.sclosure^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the • .

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor initials^
Health insuranca Porubtjiiy Act ''j
Business Associats Agreement 6/3/2021
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the nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of Identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o  The unauthorized person used the protected health inforniaiion or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
9 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated. •

jhe.Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours pf the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c... The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and.
Breach Nptificalion Rule. • .

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance witlvHIPAA and the Privacy aod
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing" to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions oh the use,and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duly to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 {!). The Covered Entity
shall be consfdered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business a^gpiale
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who wi[l be receivif

*• c ' • I • / '
3/20)4 ExWbUI ConVaciOf IrkiUats

Hoajth Insurance PortaKliiy Act
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity-has exhausTed all
remedies.

e. |f the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security ■
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall'not disclose PHI'in violation of i"
such additional restriction's and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
>  after the Business Associate becomes avyare of any use or disclosure of protected 7

health Informalion nol provided for-by the Agreemenljncluding breaches of unsecured v-
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the .* $
protected health information of the Covered Entity. .!

b. The Business Assodate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes }' .■
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be " - i
limited to: ' ' • . 7
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and.indemnification from,such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph ̂ .13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

3/2014 I Exhibit I Contractor Initials
Health Insurance PortablDiy Act
Business Associaio Agrcemont 6/3/2021
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f.'

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices all *'
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the tjse and disclosure hi
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine .
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

>::■

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
.Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to-meel the
requirements under 45 CFR Section .164.524.

h; Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record aboul an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Cove/ed Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfil) its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. • Business Associate shalfdocument such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as'would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section ''
164.528. ''

j"; Within ten.(10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a ' • 'f.
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available If
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require loMulfill its..obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR i.;
Section'164.528. _ ' , * h;

.. ■' 'V-;

k. In the event any Individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI * -a
.directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered EnFiiy. Covered Enlity shall have jhe .(;•

„  responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Individual's request to Covered Enlity would cause Covered Entity or the Business - J
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

K  Within^ ten (10) busihess days of termination of (he Agreementi for any reason, the j;:
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies'or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or ^ '
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and lirriil further uses and disclosures of such PHI to Ih'pw... )•;'
purposes thai ifiake the"relurn or destruction Infeasible, for so long as Business] /f'" 1-
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'  Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the y-
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed. i',

(4) ObltQatlons of Covered Entity ^
I  * ' ' *[

a.. ' Covered Entity shall notify BusinesS'Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Sectiori f-
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI. • t\

b. Covered Entity shall promptly no'tify Business Associate of any changes In, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
-disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section j/
164.506 or 45 CFR Sectionl64.508. , ^

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or '
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with.45 CFR 164.522, ' v
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI. .

(5) Termination for Cause I

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered f
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate X;
Agreement set forth herein as ExhibitJ. The Covered Entity may either immediately

"terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the - >i
alleged breach within a_timefrarhe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither terrnination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary. 3

.. .. .

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein.
shall have the same meaning as those lerms.iri the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference In the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to .v
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means th'e Section as in effect or as >;
amended. '

b.^ Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in Ihe-requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and %
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownershio. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity. . 3;

d;. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in'the Agreement shall be rBSOfved i"
to permit Covered Entity to'comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule,

3/2014 •• exhibit I ContfOCIOf tfthials^ *
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit' I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit 1 regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indernnificatipn provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the j
standard terms and conditions (P-37-). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services Amoskeag Hoal.th

tatei'iv Cont

Signature of Authorized Representative

Deborah o. scheetz

ractor

•  i'O 1" > •;
•  • ,

Sig^fure'oftulhorized Representative
Kri s McCracken

Name of Authorized Representative
Director Division of Lpng Term Supports and Services

•' '■ President/CEO
Title of Authorized Representative .

6/3/2021 ' '■

Name of Autho

Title of Authoriz

rized Representative

ed Representative

■.6/3/2021 '

Dale Date

3/2014 Exhibit I
Health Insufcncc Portabitiiy Act'
Business Associate Agfcemcnt
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

TheTederal Funding Accounlability and Transparency Act {FFATA} requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 12010. to report on'
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of S25,000 or more. If the
Initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$26,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with'2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency . •'
4. NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants.
,5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity , 'V"
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10: total compensation and names of the top five executives If:

10.1.- More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal gbvernhfient, and those
revenues are greater than S25M annually and

10.1 Compensation Information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days.'ln which
the award or award amendment is made.

' The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the Gerieral Provisions agrees to comply .with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law'110-2,52,
arid i CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and. Executive Compensation information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Idenliried In Sections 1.11 and !.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following (Dertification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accounlability and Transparency Act., .k

Contractor Name:

6/J/2021

Date

.  OoeuS)tn«9tiv:

1 ' • . •

Title:
Prcsident/CtO

CUOHtlSm07i3

Exhibit J - CcliTrcation Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Ad (FFATA) Compliance
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. 1 certify that the responses to the
below'iisted questions are true and accurate.

9286649370000
1, The DUNS number for your entity is; "

2. In your business or organization's preceding compieted fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your-ahnual gross revenue in U.S. federai contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federai contracts. sut>coritracts, loans, grams, subgrants. and/or
cooperative^agreernenls? ^

NO YES

if the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here - .

if the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section'13(3) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 7Bo(d)) oir section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

if the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NQ. please answer the foiiosvlng:

4. The names and.compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business.or"
organlzatioh are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Narrie:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:,

Amount:

CtKOHHS/J 10/13.

Exhibit'J,- Certilicotion Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability And Tr'ianspatency Act (FFATA) CompBance
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Oefinilions
v.

The follov/Ing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. 'Breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
^  unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized 'access, or any similar term referring to

situations where persons. other than authorized users and for an other than

authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
tnfqrmatior^." Breach- shall have the same meaning as the lerrh 'Breach* in section
1 M.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer 'Security Incident" -shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
IncidenT in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Iricident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U..S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Record's. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created,-received from or on behalf of the pepartmenl.qf Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and'disposition "is govemed by
stale or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
•Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax- Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other.sensitive and confidential information.

4. ' "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
.business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, elc.) that receives
^DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Healih Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Inddent" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed.or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted dismpllon or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data: and changes to system hardware,
•firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, iristruclion, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of dall through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouUng of physical or electronic

.  .

V5. Losi update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Coni/oclof lnllliils>
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at, risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network" means any network or-segmenl of a network that is
not designated by the Stale of New Hampshire's Department of Inforrhation
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Stale, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PF[,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish'
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as .defined in New Hampshire RSA 3.59-C:19. biometric records, etc.,
alone, or-when combined with other'personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" ishall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services. v

10. "Protected^Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
■160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for, Ihe. Proteclion of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments

•thereto.

12. "tJnsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is.
- not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information

unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to uriauthorized Individuails and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

. , • 'A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or .transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
includiog but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violatior)
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. the Contractor must not, disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
Oft

19'"' ..
I
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure,

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to'be bound by,additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such addiliona)
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
tJser must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor,agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract hnay not be used for
any other purposes that are not.indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
.  of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this

Contract. ' v.

11.. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have '
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber" securiiy and that said

r. application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via.(he internet.

2. 'Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may nol-.use computer disks
,or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of'transmitting DHHS
data.

,3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrypted and being .sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons auth'orized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) rhust be used and the web.sile must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services-, also known as File'Sharing .Sites. End User may not-use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transrriit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

j

7. Laptops and PDA. . If End User is employing portable devices to trajismit
Confidential Data said devices must'be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may hot transmit Confidential Data via an open

-iM .
r
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End'User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote .User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN), must 136:
installed on the End User's mobile dev}ce{s) or laptop-from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP toi transmit Confidential Data. End User will'
structure the Folder and. access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

I. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative -in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under-lhis Contract. To this end, the parlies must: ' '

A. ̂ Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will no'l store, transfer or process data collected in
•conheclidh with (he services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
Slates. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

,2. T.he Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to" detect potential security events that can impact'State of NH systems
;.and/or Department confidential-information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor -agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in-.support of protecting Department confidential Information.

. 4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and. hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. the Contractor agrees 'Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
. FedRAI\(1P/HITECH co_mpliant solution and complywith all applicable statutes and

regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported' and hardened operating systems, the latest ami-,viral, anti-
hacker, aiiti.-sparn. ■an.ti-spyware. and anll-malware utilities. The environment, as a

Oi
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief information Officer In the detection of any security vulnGrabilily of the hosting
infrastructure. • ^ ^

B. Disposition

.1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request-or contract termination: and will
obtain written certiflcaiion for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
-New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a s.ecure wipe program
In accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanillzation. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. •
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at

■ time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request, The written certification will include all details necessary , to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicabte,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
. Contract; Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data.using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within .thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Conlraclor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or.files, as follows:

1. The Conlraclor will, maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored-in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Conlraclor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
•'* confidential information throughout the information lifecyclc. where applicable, (from

creation, transformation, use, storage and .secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, .paper, etc.).

^  % y
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.'

4. The Contractor wilt ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of ISH systems and/or.
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. II the Contractor will be sub-conlracling any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for Stale of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those^for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will vyork with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access lorrns. and computer use agreements as part of.
obtaining and mainlaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
'system access being authorized.

6. if 'the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
•CFR -160.-103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
.{BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining .xornpliance with the
.agreement.

9. The Contractor yvill work with the Department at jls request to complete a System
f^anagemerit Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and ̂ Inerabllities that may
occur ,over the fife of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate tirhe frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Departmerit and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store,, knowingly or unknowingly, any Slate of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security' Office
leadership member within the department.

11. Data Security Bre'ach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate tf^e causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and mihirhize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs-of response and recovery from

V5. Losl update >0/09/10 ExWbtl K C'onlfoclo* Irritiob
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the breach, including but not limiled to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
'• costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and rhust in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of P) and PHI at a level and scope that is hot less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5.U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually Idenlifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative; technical, and'
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at htlps://wwvv.nh.gov/doityvendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented -breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
Slate's Security Officer-of any security breach.imrnedialely, at the email addresses
provided in Section yi. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of Ne.w Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

.Contract to only those authorized End Users v/ho need such DHHS. Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes identified'in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users: -

a. corhply wilh such safeguards as^ r.eferenced In Section IV A. above.
Implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b.

c.

d.

safeguard Ihls information a! all times.'

ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

send emails containing Confidential Informaiipn only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V5. Lostupdole 10/09/16 - Exhibit K
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Conndenlial Information received under this Contract and Individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that is

physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duly hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized'End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,-
such data must, be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above:

h.'in all other instances Confidential Data must'be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a hskrbased
assessmerit of'the circumstances Involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be,
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

'U

Contractor Is responsible for ̂ oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS'
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance Nvith this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Fe.deral regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LQSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided In
Section VI.

The Contractor, must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documenied Incident Handling and Breach Notificdtlon
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addiUon to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obijgations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify incidents;

2. Determine If personally Identifiable informationjs involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or conHrmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

vs. Lost vpcUito 10/09/(8 Exhibil K
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VI.

5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported.' as
applicable, in accordance wilh NH RSA 359-,C;20.

PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer: ;

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformattonSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

vs. LoM.updalo 10/09/18 ExMbiiK
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